Price Waterhouse & Co Chartered Accountants LLP

Independent Auditor’s Report

To the Members of Finesse International Design Private Limited

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Finesse International Design Private Limited
(“the Company™), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2025, and the Statement of Profit and
Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of
Cash Flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including material accounting
policy information and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid
financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act") in the manner so
required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in
India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2025, and total comprehensive income
(comprising of loss and other comprehensive income), changes in equity and its cash flows for the year then
ended.

Basis for Opinion

3.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under Section 143(10)
of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the “Auditor’s Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Financial Statements” section of our report. We are independent of the Company in
accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with

Other Information

4. The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises

the information included in the Board report, but does not include the financial statements and our auditor’s
report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form
of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information,
we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.
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Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged With Governance for the Financial
Statements

5. The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the Act with

7

respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position,
financial performance, changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting
principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting Standards specified under Section
133 of the Act. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance
with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting
frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of
adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial
statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.,

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

8.

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from
fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain professional
scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or

error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that

are appropriate in the circumstances. Under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for
expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial controls with reference
to financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates

and related disclosures made by management.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based

on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a
material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related
disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However,
future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.
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Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a
manner that achieves fair presentation.

10. We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

11. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”), issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of Section 143.0f the Act, we give in the Annexure B a
statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

12,

As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

(a)

(b)

(©)

(d)

(e)

®

(®

(h)

We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge
and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it
appears from our examination of those books, except for the matters stated in paragraph 12(h)(vi) below
on reporting under Rule 11(g) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 (as amended). Further,
in the absence of sufficient appropriate audit evidence, we are unable to verify whether the backup of
books of account and other books and papers maintained in electronic mode has been maintained on a
daily basis on servers physically located in India during the year.

The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including other comprehensive income), the
Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows dealt with by this Report are in
agreement with the books of account.

In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Indian Accounting Standards specified
under Section 133 of the Act.

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2025, taken on
record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2025, from being
appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act.

With respect to the maintenance of accounts and other matters connected therewith, reference is made
to our remarks in paragraph 12(b) above on reporting under Section 143(3)(b) and paragraph 12(h)(vi)
below on reporting under Rule 11(g) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 (as amended).

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of
the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure
A"

With respect to the other matters Lo be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 (as amended), in our opinion and to the best of our
information and according to the explanations given to us:

i. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in its financial
statements — Refer Note 37(b) to the financial statements;

ii. The Company was not required to recognise a provision as at March 31, 2025 under the applicable
law or Indian Accounting Standards, as it does not have any material foreseeable losses on long-term
contract. The Company did not have any derivative contracts as at March 31, 2025.

ili. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company during the year nded




Independent Auditor’s Report

To the Members of Finesse International Design Private Limited
Report on Audit of the Financial Statements

Page 4 of 4

iv. (a) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, other than as

disclosed in Note 52(A) to the financial statements, no funds have been advanced or loaned or
invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds)
by the Company to or in any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities
(“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the
Intermediary shall, whether directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities
identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”)
or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

(b) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, [other than] as

()

disclosed in the Note 52(B) to the financial statements, no funds have been received by the
Company from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Funding Parties”), with
the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall, whether
directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any
guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; and

Based on such audit procedures that we considered reasonable and appropriate in the
circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the
representations under sub-clause (a) and (b) contain any material misstatement.

The Company has not declared or paid any dividend during the year.

Based on our examination, the Company has used accounting software, which is operated by a third
party software service provider, for maintaining its books of account where service organisation’s
auditor’s report do not cover audit trail, we are unable to comment whether the audit trail feature of
the aforesaid software was enabled and operated throughout the year for all relevant transactions
recorded in the software or whether there were any instances of the audit trail feature been tampered
with. Further, the audit trail was not maintained in the prior year and hence the question of our
commenting on whether the audit trail was preserved by the Company as per the statutory
requirements for record retention does not arise.

13. The provisions of Section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act are applicable only to public companies.
Accordingly, reporting under Section 197(16) of the Act is not applicable to the Company.

For Price Waterhouse & Co Chartered Accountants LLP
Firm Registration Number: 304026E/E-300009

Lonha Gosmar

Sonika Burman

Partner

Membership Number: 504839
UDIN: 25504839BMOXPJ1305

Place: Gurugram

Date: ("\N:l \3,d0dg
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Report on the Internal Financial Controls with reference to Financial Statements under
clause (i) of sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Act

1. We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of Finesse
International Design Private Limited (“the Company”) as of March 31, 2025 in conjunction with our
audit of the financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

2. The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls
based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering
the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls Over Financial Reporting (“the Guidance Note”) issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India (“ICAI”). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the
orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company’s policies, the
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information,
as required under the Act.

Auditor’s Responsibility

3. Ourresponsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference
to financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance
Note and the Standards on Auditing specified under Section 143(10) of the Act to the extent applicable
to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of internal financial controls and
both issued by the ICAIL Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements was established and maintained and
if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

4. Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls system with reference to financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our
audit of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements included obtaining an
understanding of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements, assessing the risk
that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of
internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error.

5. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system with reference to financial
statements,

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls With Reference to Financial Statements

6. A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements is a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles.
A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements includes those policies
and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and
fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable
assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in
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accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the
company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the
company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of
unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material effect
on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls With Reference to Financial Statements

7.

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation
of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements to future periods are subject to
the risk that the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or
procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

8.

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls system
with reference to financial statements and such internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements were operating effectively as at March 31, 2025, based on the internal control over financial
reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control
stated in the Guidance Note issued by ICAI.

For Price Waterhouse & Co Chartered Accountants LLP
Firm Registration Number: 304026E/E-300009

Sonika Burman
Partner

Membership Number: 504839
UDIN: 25504839BMOXPJ1305

Place: Gurugram

Date: moﬂ \3|303~5
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In terms of the information and explanations sought by us and furnished by the Company, and the books
of account and records examined by us during the course of our audit, and to the best of our knowledge
and belief, we report that:

i (a)

(b)

()

(d)

(A) The Company is maintaining proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative
details and situation, of Property, Plant and Equipment.

(B) The Company is maintaining proper records showing full particulars of Intangible Assets.

The Property, Plant and Equipment are physically verified by the Management according to a
phased programme designed to cover all the items over a period of three years which, in our
opinion, is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its assets.
Pursuant to the programme, a portion of the Property, Plant and Equipment has been physically
verified by the Management during the year and no material discrepancies have been noticed on
such verification.

The Company does not own any immovable properties (Refer Note 3.1 to the financial
statements). Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(i)(c) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

The Company has chosen cost model for its Property, Plant and Equipment (including Right of
Use assets) and Intangible Assets. Consequently, the question of our commenting on whether the
revaluation is based on the valuation by a Registered Valuer, or specifying the amount of change,
if the change is 10% or more in the aggregate of the net carrying value of each class of Property,
Plant and Equipment (including Right of Use assets) or Intangible Assets does not arise.

(e) No proceedings have been initiated on (or) are pending against the Company for holding benami

property under the Prohibition of Benami Property Transactions Act, 1988 (as amended in 2016)
(formerly the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988)) and Rules made
thereunder, and therefore the question of our commenting on whether the Company has
appropriately disclosed the details in the financial statements does not arise.

ii. (a) The physical verification of inventory excluding stocks with third parties has been conducted at

(b)

iii. (a)

reasonable intervals by the Management during the year and, in our opinion, the coverage and
procedure of such verification by Management is appropriate. In respect of inventory lying with
third parties, these have substantially been confirmed by them. The discrepancies noticed on
physical verification of inventory as compared to book records were not 10% or more in aggregate
for each class of inventory and have been appropriately dealt with in the books of account.

During the year, the Company has been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of Rs. 5 crores,
in aggregate, from banks and financial institutions on the basis of security of current assets. The
Company has filed quarterly returns or statements with such banks, and the discrepancies noted
in such quarterly return or statements with the unaudited books of account were trivial. Also,
refer Note 46 to the financial statements.

The Company has granted unsecured advances in nature of loans to certain employees during the
year. The Company has not made investments or stood guarantee or provided security to any
parties. The aggregate amount during the year, and balance outstanding at the Balance Sheet date
with respect to such advances in nature of loans to employees are as per the table given below:




Annexure B to Independent Auditors’ Report
Referred to in paragraph 11 of the Independent Auditors’ Report of even date to the members of Finesse
International Design Private Limited on the financial statements as of and for the year ended March 31,

2025

Page 2 of 5

Particulars Advances in nature of
loans (INR Lakhs)

Aggregate amount granted/ provided
during the year

- Others (employees) : 92.56

Balance outstanding as at Balance Sheet
date in respect of the above case

- Others (employees) 51.04

(Also, refer Note 13 to the financial statements).

(b) Inrespect of the aforesaid advances in nature of the loan (which are interest free), the terms and

conditions under which such loans were granted are not prejudicial to the Company’s interest.

(c) In respect of the advances in nature of loans, no schedule for repayment of principal has been

stipulated by the Company. Therefore, in the absence of stipulation of repayment terms, we are
unable to comment on the regularity of repayment of principal.

(d) In respect of the advances in nature of loans, there is no amount which is overdue for more than

ninety days.

(e) There were no advances in nature of loans which have fallen due during the year and were

®

iv.

vii. (a)

renewed/extended. Further, no fresh loans were granted to same parties to settle the existing
overdue advances in nature of loan.

There were no advances in nature of loans which were granted during the year, including to
promoters/ related parties that were repayable on demand or without specifying any terms or
period of repayment,

The Company has not granted any loans or made any investments or provided any guarantees or
security to the parties covered under Sections 185 and 186. Therefore, the reporting under clause
3(iv) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

The Company has not accepted any deposits of amounts which are deemed to be deposits
referred in Sections 73, 74, 75 and 76 of the Act and the Rules framed there under.

The Central Government of India has not specified the maintenance of cost records under sub-
section (1) of Section 148 of the Act for any of the products and services of the Company.
Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(vi) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

In our opinion, the Company is generally regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues in
respect of provident fund, though there has been a slight delay in a few cases, and is regular in
depositing undisputed statutory dues, including sales tax, employees’ state insurance,
professional tax, income tax, tax deducted at source, service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise,
value added tax, cess, goods and services tax and other material statutory dues, as applicable,
with the appropriate authorities.
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(b)

Viii.

ix. (a)

(b

(c)

(d)

(e

x. (a)

(b)

xi. (a)

(b)

The particulars of statutory dues referred to in sub-clause (a) as at March 31, 2025 which have
not been deposited on account of a dispute, are as follows:

Name of Nature of Amount Period to which Forum where the
the statute dues (Rs. Lakhs) the amount dispute is pending
relates

Goods and Goods and 7.10 FY 2017-18 Assessing Officer
Services Tax | Services Tax
Act, 2017

There are no transactions previously unrecorded in the books of account that have been
surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax
Act, 1961.

The Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or other borrowings or in the payment of
interest to any lender during the year.

On the basis of our audit procedures, we report that the Company has not been declared Wilful
Defaulter by any bank or financial institution or government or any government authority.

In our opinion, the term loans have been applied for the purposes for which they were obtained.
(Also, refer Note 17 to the financial statements)

According to the information and explanations given to us, and the procedures performed by us,
and on an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, we report that no
funds raised on short-term basis have been utilised for long-term purposes by the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and procedures performed by us, we
report that the Company did not have any subsidiaries, joint ventures or associate companies
during the year. Accordingly, reporting under clauses 3(ix)(e) and 3(ix)(f) of the Order are not
applicable to the Company.

The Company has not raised any money by way of initial public offer or further public offer
(including debt instruments) during the year. Accordingly, the reporting under clause 3(x)(a) of
the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company has not made any preferential‘allotment or private placement of shares or fully or
partially or optionally convertible debentures during the year. Accordingly, the reporting under
clause 3(x)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

During the course of our examination of the books and records of the Company, carried out in
accordance with the generally accepted auditing practices in India, we have neither come across
any instance of material fraud by the Company or on the Company, noticed or reported during
the year, nor have we been informed of any such case by the Management.

During the course of our examination of the books and records of the Company, carried out in
accordance with the generally accepted auditing practices in India, a report under Section 143(12)
of the Act, in Form ADT-4, as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules,
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(c)

Xii.

xiii.

Xiv.

xvi. (a)

(b)

(©)

(@)

XVii.

xviii.

Xix.

2014 was not required to be filed with the Central Government. Accordingly, the reporting under
clause 3(xi)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

During the course of our examination of the books and records of the Company carried out in
accordance with the generally accepted auditing practices in India, and as represented to us by
the management, no whistle-blower complaints have been received during the year by the
Company. Accordingly, the reporting under clause 3(xi)(c) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company. ’ i '

As the Company is not a Nidhi Company and the Nidhi Rules, 2014 are not applicable to it, the
reporting under clause 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company has entered into transactions with related parties in compliance with the
provisions of Section 188 of the Act. The details of related party transactions have been disclosed
in the financial statements as required under Indian Accounting Standard 24 “Related Party
Disclosures” specified under Section 133 of the Act. Further, the Company is not required to
constitute an Audit Committee under Section 177 of the Act and, accordingly, to this extent, the
reporting under clause 3(xiii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

In our opinion, the Company does not have an internal audit system and is not required to have
an internal audit system as per provisions of the Act.

In our opinion, the Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or
persons connected with him. Accordingly, the reporting on compliance with the provisions of
Section 192 of the Act under clause 3(xv) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India
Act, 1934. Accordingly, the reporting under clause 3(xvi)(a) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

The Company has not conducted non-banking financial / housing finance activities during the
year. Accordingly, the reporting under clause 3(xvi)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

The Company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations made by the
Reserve Bank of India. Accordingly, the reporting under clause 3(xvi)(c) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

In our opinion, the Group (as defined in the Core Investment Companies (Reserve Bank)
Directions, 2016) has 4 CICs as part of the Group.

The Company has not incurred any cash losses in the financial year or in the immediately
preceding financial year.

There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year and accordingly the
reporting under clause 3(xviii) of the Order is not applicable.

On the basis of the financial ratios (Also refer Note 47 to the financial statements), ageing and
expected dates of realisation of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities, other
information accompanying the financial statements, our knowledge of the Board of Directors and
management plans and based on our examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions,
nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists
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xxi.

as on the date of the audit report that the Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing
at the date of Balance Sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from the Balance
Sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the
Company. We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit
report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within
a period of one year from the Balance Sheet date will get discharged by the Company as and when
they fall due.

The provisions relating to Corporate Social Responsibility under Section 135 of the Act are not
applicable to the Company. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(xx) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

The reporting under clause 3(xxi) of the Order is not applicable in respect of audit of Standalone
Financial Statements. Accordingly, no comment in respect of the said clause has been included
in this report.

For Price Waterhouse & Co Chartered Accountants LLP
Firm Registration Number: 304026E/E-300009

Sonika Burman

Partner

Membership Number: 504839
UDIN: 25504839BMOXPJ1305

Place: Gurugram

Date: M \3| 3_,,15



Finesse International Design Private Limited

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025

(All amounts are in (Rs.) Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Notes As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Assets
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 3.1 912.29 1,370.23
Right-of-use assels 4.1 4,189.70 5,107.98
Intangible assets 3.2 42.55 17.39
Financial assets
Net investment in sub lease 4.2 1,045.07 211.23
Security deposits 5 456.66 553.53
Deferred tax assets (net) 6 1,501.84 1,501,84
Non-current tax assets 7 13.56 23.62
Total non-current assets 8,161.67 8,785.82
Current assets
Inventories 8 2,250.42 1,995.966
Financial assets
Investments 9 142.69 991.07
Trade receivables 10 351.33 166.03
Cash and cash equivalents 11 77.42 65.29
Security deposits 12 171.25 26.67
Other financial assets 13 51.04 42.85
Other current assets 14 285.85 153.53
Total current assets 3.339.00 3,441.40
Total assets 11,500.67 12,227.22
Equity and liabilities
Equity
Equity share capital 15 166.30 166.30
Other equity 16 142,74 1,006.85
Total equity 309.04 1,263.15
Liabilities
Non-current liabilities
Financial liabilities
Borrowings 17 903.63 250.00
Lease liabilities 4.3 4,597.91 4,904.17
Other financial liabilities 18 548.47 168.47
Provisions 19 340.04 263.63
Total non-current liabilities 6,399.05 5,686.27
Current liabilities
Borrowings 20 747.70 2,325.67
Financial liabilities
Lease liabilities 4.3 1,373.77 1,252.28
Trade payables 21
Total outstanding dues of :
- micro enterprises and small enterprises 96.96 157.64
- other than miero enterprises and small enterprises 1,662.52 695.22
Other financial labilities 22 353.27 327.92
Other current liabilities 23 422,27 405.15
Provisions 24 135.19 113.92
Total current liabilities 4,791.68 5,277.80
Total equity and liabilities 11,500.67 12,227.22
Carparate infarmation and basis of preparation 1&2

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
This is the Balance Sheet date referred to in our report of even date

For Price Waterhouse & Co Chartered Accountants LLP
Firm Registration No. 304026E/E300009

Sonba. Gugvrrar
Sonilta Burman

Partner
Membership No.:504839

Place: Gurugram

Date: M \a| a‘oas

For and on behalf of the Board uf Directors of
Fiye ternational Desi rafe Limited

Shantanu Mehra

Place: London
Dpde:

’—'{])’)‘[_)m_- 01125457
\ L~

Rajesh Minamalai
Chief Finaneial Officer
DIN:01125351

Place: Lendon Place: Mumbai

Date: | g-,g,s‘ i l?—‘f[

Director and Chief Executive Officer

15155~



Finesse International Design Private Limited

Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2025
All amounts are in Rupees (Rs.) Lakhs, unless otherwise stated

Year ended

Year ended

LiDIEY March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Income
Revenue from operations 24 8,976.27 8,543.17
Other income 25 595.81 111.03
Total income 9,572.08 8,654.20
Expenses
Cost of materials consumed 27(a) 517.66 525.96
Purchase of stock-in-trade 27(b) 1,169.72 1,137.45
Changes in inventories of finished goods, work-in-progress and 28 35.04 (574.38)
stock-in-trade
Employee benefits expense 29 3,042.20 3,208.51
Finance costs 30 743.82 813.52
Depreciation and amortisation expense 31 1,541.97 1,784.56
Other expenses 32 3,490.85 3,304.46
Total expenses 10,541.26 10,200.08
Loss before tax (969.18) (1,545.88)
Income tax expense:
Current tax = -
Deferred tax 33 = (159.84)
Total income tax expense - (159.84)
Loss for the year (969.18) (1,386.04)
Other comprehensive income
Items that will not to be reclassified to statement of profit and loss
Re-measurement gains/ (losses) on defined benefit plans 36 15.07 (8.03)
Income tax effect on above ” 1.33
Other comprehensive income for the year 15.07 (6.70)
Total comprehensive income for the year (954.11) (1,392.74)
Earnings per equity share [Nominal value of share Rs. 10 34
(March 31, 2024: Rs. 10)] (In Rs.)
(1) Basic (58.28) (91.23)
(2) Diluted (58.28) (91.23)
Corporate information and basis of preparation 1&2

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

This is the Statement of Profit and Loss referred to in our report of even date

For Price Waterhouse & Co Chartered Accountants LLP
Firm Registration No. 304026E/E3o0009

Sonika Burman

Partner
Membership No.:504839

Place: Gurugram

Date: M \’“' 3—035

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

DIN: o

Nikhil
Director
DIN:01125351

hra

Place: London

Date: IHS’\W

1A ehra

Director and Chief Executive Ofﬁ‘cer

DIN: 01125457

Place: London
Date:

12

Rajf®h Annamalai
Chief Financial Officer

Place: Mumbai
Date: Q,.‘ 247

BREY



Finesse International Design Private Limited
Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended
March 31, 2025

All amounts are in Rupees (Rs.) Lukhs, unless otherwise stated

Year ended
March 31, 2025

Year ended
March 31, 2024

Cash lows from operating activities

Loss before tax

Adjustments for:

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment

Amortisation of intangible assets

Amortisation of right-of-use assets

(Profit)/loss on sale of property, plant and equipment

Finance costs except interest expense on lease liabilities

Interest expense on lease liabilities

Interest income on income tax refund

Interest income from financial assets at amortised cost

Interest income from financial assets at amortised cost- subleases
Fair value gain on financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Gain on transfer of leases to sublease

Gain on termination of leases

Provision no longer required written back

Operating profit before working capital changes

Change in working capital

(Increase) in trade receivables

(Increase) in inventories

Decrease / (increase) in other financial assets
Decrease / (increase) in other assets

(Decrease) / increase in trade payables

Increase in provisions

(Decrease) / increase in other financial liabilities
(Decrease) / increase in other liabilities

Cash used in operations

Income tax paid (net of refund)

Net cash flows used in operating activities

Cash flow from investing activities

Purchase of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets
Purchase of current investments

Proceeds from sale/ maturity of current investments

Proceeds from sale of property, plant & equipment

Net cash flows used in investing activities

Cash flow from financing activities

Proceeds from issue of share capital

Proceeds/ (repayments) of long term borrowings (net of charges)
Proceeds/ (repayments) of short term borrowings (net of charges)
Payment of principal portion of lease liabilities

Interest on borrowings

Net cash flows from financing activities

Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year

Components of cash and cash equivalents
Balances with banks - on current accounts

Cash on hand

Total cash and cash equivalents

(A)

(B)

©)

(A+B+C)

(969.18) (1,545.88)
365.06 437.77
29.59 35.43
1,147.32 1,311.36
(56.57) 0.09
253.98 230.14
489.84 583.38
(73.10) 5
(48.62) (47.62)
(61.00) (14.10)
(1:83) (18.53)
(238.22) e
(73.08) .
- (25.62)
764.19 946.42
(185.30) (87.10)
(263.46) (617.76)
(7.28) 90.18
(29.98) 23.58
906.62 (216.25)
22,65 92.37
384.24 (30.29)
17.12 (57.05)
1,608.80 144.10
83.16 0.41
1,691.96 144.51
(268.23) (301.99)
(142.69) (1,870.00)
992.90 897.46
20543 -
847,41 (1,274.53)
- 2,000.00
653.63 (247.90)
(1,577.97) 1,262.16
(1,365.17) (1,641.56)
(237.73) (210.32)
(2,527.24) 1,162.38
12.13 32.36
65,209 32.93
77.42 65.20
53.86 32.09
_23.56 33.20
ardt: 3 65.20

Note: The Statement of Cash Flows has been prepared under the indirect method as set out in the Ind AS,7 "Statement of Cash Flows",

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
This is the Statement of Cash Flows referred to in our report of even date

For Price Waterhouse & Co Chartered Accountants LLP
Firm Registration No. 304026E/E300009

Sonihe Quavmwan
Sonika Burman

Partner
Membership No.:504839

Place: Gurugram

Date: M \1, ao’_s

For and gn behalf of the Board of Directors of

Nikhil
Direclor
DIN:01125351

chira

Place: Londo

P s

DIN: 01125457

R 1 Annamafad
Chief Financial Officer

Plaee: Mumbii
Date; I

51”’

—

Director and Chief Executive Officer

1nde|2s™



Finesse International Design Private Limited
Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended March 31, 2025
All amounts ure in Rupees (Rs.) Lakhs, except share data

A Equity share capital

Equity shares of Rs 10 each issued, subscribed and fully paid up

No. of shares

Rs, (In Lakhs)

Asut April o1, 2023 : 14,690,002 146.90
Shares issued during the year 1,649,664 19,40
As at March 31, 2024 10, 62,966 166,30
Shares issued during the year - -
As at March 31, 2025 16,62,066 166.30
B Other equity

. Reserves and surplus .
Particulars Retained earnings | Sccurities premium | Lotal other equity
As at April 01, 2023 (3,622.23) 4,131.16 508.93
Loss for the year (1,386.04) - (1,386.04)
Other comprehensive income for the year (net of tax) (6.70) - (6.70)
Premium on issue of equity shares - 1,080.66 1,980.66
As at Mareh 31, 2024 (5,014.97) 6,111.82 1,096.85
Loss for the year (969.18) - (969.18)
Other comprehensive income for the year (net of tax) 15.07 - 15.07
As at March 31, 2025 (5,960.08) 6,111.82 142.74

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
This is the Statement of Changes in Equity referred to in our report of even date

For Price Waterhouse & Co Chartered Accountants LLP
Firm Registration No. 304026E/E300009

~feria Gosvmon
Sonika Burman

Partner
Membership No.:504839

Place: Gurugram

Date: M \2. ao 35

hish

DIN: bififizo66

For and on behalf of the Board of
Finesse International Desi

shit

Pt

Date:

Rajesil Annamal,
Chief Financial Officer

DIN:o1125351

Place: London

Date: |’J,\ §1 25~

Place: London

Place: Mumihai

Date: | Q'l {\%/

Director and Chief Executive Officer

DIN: 01125457 I"‘ ,51 %"
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Finesse International Design Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025

(All amounts are in (Rs.) Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

1. Corporate information

Finesse International Design Private Limited (the “Company”) was Incarporated under the provisions of {he Companies Act, 1056, The Company is
engaged in the business of manufacturing and retafling of high-end fashion clot hing. On July 26, 2019, the existing shareholders of the Company
transferred certain equity shares 1o Aditya Rirla Fashion and Retail Limited (“ARFRL ar {he Holding Company”). The Company also allotted
2,38,570 equity shares of Rs. 10 each at a premium of Rs. 905.80 per share. Consequently, the Company became subsidiary of ABFRL, with effect
from July 26, 2019.

Consequent to above, the Company is a deemed publie limited company under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and has its registered office
at D-32, Ground Floor, Biefence Colony, New Dellii — 110024.

2. Basis of preparation

2.1 Compliance with Ind AS and historical cost convention

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified under the
Compandes (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, C: punies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2018, read with Section 133 of
the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act™) and presentation requirements of Division 11 of Schedule TH of the Act and other relevant provisions of the Act
ag applicable,

The financial statements have been prepared on accrual basis under the historical cost convention, except the following assets and liabilities, which
have been measured at fair value as required by the relevant Ind AS:

e Certain financial assets and liabilities (refer accounting policy regarding financial instruments);

s Defined employee benefit plans;

The financial statements are presented in Indian Rupee (INR) and all values are rounded to the nearest lakh, unless otherwise stated.
New and amended standards adopted by the company

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs vide notification dated September og, 2024 and Seplember 28, 2024 notified the Companies (Indian Aceounting
Standards) Second Amendment Rules, 2024 and Companies (Indian Atcounting Standards) Third Amendment Rules, 2024, respectively, which
amended/ notified certain accounting standards (see below) and are effective for annual repurting perivds beginning on or after 1 April 2024:

» Insurance contracts - Ind AS 117; and

+ Lease Liability in Sale and Leaseback — Amendments to Ind AS 116

These amendments did not have any material impact on the amounts recognised in prior periods and are not expected to significantly affect the
current or future periods.

2,2 Current versus non-current classification
The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/ non-current classification.

An asset is treated as current when it is:

e Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in a normal operating cycle;

» Held primarily for the purpose of trading;

s Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period; or

¢ Cash or cash equivalents unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a lability for at least twelve months after the reporting period.

All other assets are classified as non-current.

Aliability is treated as current when:

¢ Itis expected to be settled in normal operating cycle;

¢ Itis held primarily for the purpose of trading;

« Itis due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period; or

s There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period.

All other liabilities are classified as non-current.

Deferred tax assets and liabililies are classified as non-current assets and liabilities.

The operaling cycle is the time hetween the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash and cash equivalents. The Company has
identified twelve months as its operating cycle,




2.3 Significant accounting judgments, cstimates and assumptions

= The prepavation of the Company’s financial stalements requires the management |0 make judgements, estimates and assumplions that affect the
reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets, lighilities, the accompanying disclosures and the diselosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty
about these assumptions and estimates conld resull in ouleomes that require o material adjustment to the earrying amount of assets or linbilitics
alfected in fulire periods; Estimates and assumplions are reviewed an periodie basis, Revisions Lo accounting estimates are recognised in the perind
in which the estimates ave revised,

*The key assimplions concerning the fulure and other key sourees of estimation, that have o significant risk of causing a material sdjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities, within the next finaneial vear, are deseribed below. The Company's plions and estimates are hased
on purameters available at the time of preparation of financial stalements. Existing cireumstanees and assumplions about future developments,
however, may change due to market chunges or cirenmstances arising that are bevond the control of the Company. Such changes are reflected in the
assutnplions when they ogeur,

(i) Employee benefit plans

The present value of the gratuity is determined using actuarial valuations. An actuarial valuation invalves muking various assumptions that may

differ from etual developments in the future. These inelude the determination of the discounting rale, fulure salary increases and mortality rates.

Due to the complexities involved in the valuation and jts long-term nature, a defined benefit obligation is highly sensitive to changes in these
plions, All prions are reviewed at each reporting date.

The parameter most subject to change is the discounting rate. In determining the appropriate discounting rate for plans vperated in India, the
management considers the interest rates of gevernment bonds in currencies consistent with the currencies of the post-employment benefit
obligation,

‘The mortality rate is based pn publicly available mortality tables, Those morlality tables tend to change only at interval in response to demographic
chinges. Future salary inereases and gratuity increases are based on expected future inflation rates.

(ii) Taxes

Deferved tix agsets are recognised for unused (ax losses to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the losses
ean be utilised. Significant management judgement is required to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be recognised, based upon the
likely timing and thie level of future taxable profits,

As at March 31, 2025, the Company has accumulated tax losses of Rs. 3,917.65 Lalhs (March 31, 2024: Rs. 3640,79 Lakhs) carried forward as per
income tax records of the Company.

(iii) Provision on inventories

The Company provides for inventories based on policy, past experience, current trend and future expectations of these materials depending on the
categury of goods,

(iv) Leases

The Company ditermines the lease term as the non-vancellible term of the lease, together with any periods covered by an option to extend the lease
if it is reasonably certain to be exercised, or any periogs covered by an option to terminate the lease, if it is reasonably certain not to be exercised.

The Company has lease contracts that include extension and termination options. The Co pany applics jud in evaluating whether it is
reasonably certain to exercise the option to renew or terminate the lease. It considers all relevant factors that create an econontie incentive for it to
exereise either the r 1 or termination, After the ¢ it date, the Company r the lease term il there is a significant event or

change in cireumstances that i within its control and affects its ability to exercise or not to exercise the aplion Lo venew or to terminate.

(v) Going concern

The Campany's current liabilities s on Mareh 34, 2025 exeeed {ls nel current asset by Rs, 78.91 Lakhs excluding current lease lHability of Rs. 1L,373.77
Lakhs, the Company has access to approved unutilised/ undrawn working capital loan facility of Rs. 8oy Lakhs 1o meet its future working capital
requirements and the Company is net debt negative by Bs. 1,431.22 Lakhs 85 on March 31, 2025 (Borrowings Rs. 1,651.93 Lakhs, less Investment Rs,
142,60 Lakhs, less Cash and cash equivalent Re 77-42 Lakhs). The Company has also widertaken various husiness initiatives including cast
reduction/optimisation stralegies to strangthen its financial position. Aceordingly, the management is confident that the Company would continue Lo
generate cash flows from its operations, Hence, these financinl statlements have been prepared by the munagement assuming going coneern which
tontemplates realization of assets and settement of liahilities in the normal eourse of business.




Finesse International Design Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31,2025
1 nmounts ave in (R, Lalds, nnless otherwise stted

3.1 Property, plant and equipment

Accounting policy
Property, plant and equi are tibtel b Wistorical cost less Tated ] lateal i
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Finesse Intcruational Deslgn Private Lim{ted
Notes ta the financlal st tene s for the year ended March 31,
All s, ) Lakh rwise

k] Alul
i et RS vae  ome
Cost
As at April 01, 2023 1,755.25 44.33 279.18 17.57 127,15 211.66 2,495.14
Additions 162.90 - 4140 - 718
Disposals o1
As atMarch g1, 2024 R
Additions -6 3 & 11590
Dispasals 37.05 2.5 58509

As atMarch g1, 2025

1G56.06 20,05

Aceumulated Deprecintion

As it April o1, 2023 566.69 R 14.99 112.10 17.56
Tepreciation for the year (refer note 31) -
rispuigals

As it Muareh 31, 2024

Depreciotion for the year (refer note 91)
Dispiseals

As at March 31, 2025

Net carrying value as at:
As al Mareh 31, 2024 "
As at March 31, 2025 X . 1y,

Note: The Company hay not revalued its property, plant and equipment (including right-of-use assets) during the current and prvviuua-l year,




Finesse Internntiona) Design Frivate Limited
Notes to the financial statenients fop the year ended March 31, 2025
All smiorunts Re.) 1 i otlieriwise alited

3.2 Intangible assets

Accounting policy

Tntangilile dgsobs are stided ot cost I ug bited Taustion ani 1

The wseful lives of intangilide nimts are besessed elther finite or indefinite. Intungille asits will Tinite lives are ametised over the useful T dife amil assenser] fur impai ent, whenever there is

fay inclication tlest the i thle aasel iy he impatived. The Leastivnn periued and the amortisativg et fur wn intangilile st with o fuite poful life: are: peviewend at least at the end of each
porting preriod. The rtisitlol expense ol intangible wssety with fimitet lives b recognised it he statement ol profit wnad bups

Intangible azsets with indefinite waclil liyes a1 ot aurtiaed, but are tested fis: impairment annually, either individumaily or at the eash-goneruting wnil leve), Thi of indefinite life is d

annially b determipe whether the indefinite life vantitives to be supportable. 1f nal, the change in useful life from indefinite to finite; | made om & prospective basiy,

Gains or losses arising from Kuition of an § sib) asset are  as the diffe between the net disposal Pproceeds and the canrying amount of te asset are recognised in the Statement of
Prafitand Loss when (e asset bs de-recugnised,

Amartisation mettiods nnd peviods
A sy of smiirtistion lietd 1o the Coimpanys i,

ilile wasrls s s bl
s T s

lr.‘nmmlll'r seftware 3 Yearn

l.':nmpnl.rr software Tatal
Coslt
As at April 01, 2023 195.01 195.01
Additions 262 2.62
Dispasals - =
As at March 31, 2024 L7, 1y7.0y
Additions 54.75 54.75
Disposals 1500 WA
As atMarch g1, 2025 23798 U378
Amorlisation
As atAprll 01, 2023 144.81 144.81
Amartisilion for the year (refer note 31 35.43 35.43
Diipasals - -
As at March 31, 2024 Al ng 180,y
Aunititation for the year (refer note 31) 29.59 2y.59
Dispisala 14 00 1500
As at March g1, 2025 194,83 104,83
Net carrying value as nt;
As atMarch 31, 2024 17, 17.41)

As at March 31, 2025 — —

Note: The Company has not revalued jts intangible assets during the current or previous year,

A kc., Ch.ugl,,'
N \-\.P‘N Mc.u




Finessc International Design Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025
(All ampunts are in (Rs,) Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

4 Leases

Accounting policy

The Company's lease asset classes primarily consist of leases for huildi gs. The Campany al contrael inception, all arrangements to
determing whether they arve, or contain, a lease, that conveys the right to comtrol the use of an identified assel for a perod of Hme in exchange
for consideralion. 's assess whether a contract conveys the rght to control the use of an identified assel, the Company assess whether:

The contract involves the use of an identified asset — this may be specified explicitly or implicitly and should be physieally distinct or represint
substantially all of the capacity of a physically distinct asset. If the supplier has a substantive substitution right, then the asset is not identified:

The Company has the right to obtain substantially all of the economic benefits from the use of the asset throughout the period of use; and

The Company has the right to direct the use of the assel, The Company has the vight when it has the decision-muking rights thil are most
relevant Lo ehanging how and for what purpose the asset is used. In rare cases where the decigian ahout how and for whal purpose the assel i
used is predetermined, the Company has the right to direet the use of the asset either the Company has the right to operate (he asuet: or the
Company designed the asset in o way that predetermines how and for whal purpose it will be used.

At inception or on reassessment of a contract that ronlains a lease component, the Company allocates the consideration in the contract to each
lease component on the basis of their relative stand-alone prices.

(i) Right-of-use assets
The Company recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease liability at the lease commencement date except for short-term leases which are less
than 12 months and leases of Tow value assels, The right-of-use asset is initinlly measured at vost, less any aceumulated depreciation and
impairment losses, and adjusted for any of lease linbilities: The cost of right of use assets comprises of the initial amount of the
lease linbility recognised, plus any initial divect costs incurred, plus lease payments made al or before the commencement date and less any
leasie incentives received. Right-of-use assets are depreciated on 4 straight-line basis aver the shorler of the lease term and the estimated
useful lives of the pssets.

If ownership of the leased asset trans(ers to the Company at the end of the lease term or the cost reflects the exercise of a purchase option,
depreciation is calculated using the estimated useful life of the asset.

(ii) Lease liabilities

The lease liability is initinlly measured at {he pf fresent value of the lease payments that are not paid at the commencement date. The lease
puyments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease, if that rate can be readily determined. If that rate cannot be rendily
determined, the Company uses incremental borrow ny rite,

Lease paymenls included in the measurement of the lease liability comprise of fixed payments, including in-substance fixed payments. The
lease linbilities are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

In addition, the carvying smount of legse lighilities is re-measured if there is 8 modification arising due to change in the lease term, change in
the lease payments or a chango in the assessment of an option to purchase the wndeclying asset, When the lease linbility is re-measured in this
way, a corresponding adjustment is mude to the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset, or is recorded in statement of profit and loss if the
carrying amount of the right-of-use assel hus been reduced to zera,

The Company presents right-of-use assets that do not meet the definition of investment property, and lease liabilities, separately in the
Balanee Sheet,

(iii) Short-term leases and leases of low value assets
The Company applies the short-lerm lease recognition exemption to its short-term leases (i.e., those leases that have a lease term of 12 months
or less from the commencément date and do not containa purchase option). It also applies the lease of low-value assels recognition exemption
to leases that are considered to be low value. Lease payments on short-term leases and leases of low-value assets are recognised as expense on
a straight-Tine basis over the lease term.

Right-of-use assets As at As at
& March 31, 2025 March g1, 2024
Opening net block 5,107.98 6,003.38
Additions 1,262.21 415.97
Deletions (1,033.17) -
Amortisalion (1,147.22) (1,311.96)
Closing net block 4,189,70 5:107.08
4.2 Netinvestment in sub lease
Net investment in sub lease 1,045.07 211.22
Total 1,045.0 211,23
4.3 Lease liabilities
Balance at beginning of the year 6,156.45 6,587.49
Additions 1,220.92 627.14
Deletion (530.36) -
Interest expense on lease liabilities (refer note 30) 489.84 583.38
Payments 1,365.1 1,641.56
Balance at end of the year 5,971.68 6,156.45

Cwrrent 1,373.77 1,252,28
Non-current Q7,91 r
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5 Security deposits As at As at

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Noun-current - 0

Security deposits
Unsecured, considered eood

456.66 53
Total —— 43666 oausy
6 Deferred tax assets (nep)

Balance co mprises temiporary difference attributable to;

Asat Asal
Miarch 31, 2085 Mareh 41, 202y
Depreciation and Amarisation exponge 1391 13.91
Tmpact of difference dues o adj made 1t aceordance i)y Ind AS 116 26322 26320
Disallownnee mnder Section 438 and 40{n)(1a) of the Incame Tax Act, 1961 100,56 104,56
Less s per income fox putations availuble for aff: “tiing against future Laxable income 1,634.70 L0340
Provision for lud ind doubiful debis 40 040
Total deferred 1ax nssels 1,521.79 1,521.79
Fair valugtion #8310 ol mutual funds st FVTPL 032 g

Re-measiirement gaing/ (losses) on defined Denidi plans [7.03) (7.45)
lmpact of diffs due to pedj made iy lance with Ind AS 109 2b.88

2h. 26.88
Total deferved tax labilities 19.95 10.95

Netdeferred tax assets

Lo, 1,501.84

Impact of Disallowance Fair valuation

Depreciation S 3 = Provision for Bad Other
and Ind AS 116 | under Section Tax Losses £ainion and Doubtful comprehensive
o] and Ind AS 43B and mutual funds
amortisation

income

40(a)(ia)

Note: During the vear, deferred tax asset lias 1ot been recognised on car rv forward losses, unabsorbed depreciation and deductible temporary differences as it is not probable that future taxable
profits will be available before such losses evpine against which the Company can use the benefits therefrom,

As at As at
Nou-current tax assets March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Income tax receivable 13.56 4362
13.56 23_;.62

Inventories

Accounting policy ¢

Raw materials, and accessories are valued at lower of cost or net realisable value, However, these items are considered to be realisably at cost, if the finished products, in which they will be used,
are expected to be sold at or above cost. Cost includes eost of purchase and other costs in brirging the inventories to thei present location and condition, Cost is determined on weighted average

Traded gods, wolk-in-progress and finishied goods are valtied at vast or met realisable value, wh icheveris lower. ka—]n-pmg:w andd finished oods inclide costs of direct materials, labour and

A proportion of mannfictiring overheads based an the sermal operating eaparity, but excluding borrenving eost, Traded goods roast inclidles cogt of purchase antd ofley cosls incurred in bringing
the invintorios to theis present locatlon and eondition, Cost Is determined on wilghtediverige cost Lz,

Net reatisable value |s the estimated solling price in the ordinary conrse bl business, less estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs mecessary to make the saly,
Proceeds in respect of silis of raw malerials/ stores are credited o the respective heads. Olbsolets angd defective inventory arediily provided for, busis the management sstimates,

As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

At fongr of st g reLrealisablo value

Raw minterigls

734.37 435.87
Work-in-progress 255.13 210,19
Finished goods* 540,69 612.36

Stock-in-trade ** 739.23 73754
Total 2 2 1 .96

* During the year ended March 31, 2025 provision for dormancy debited to Statement of Profit and Loss amounted to Rs. 242,38 Lakhs (credited to Statement of Profit and Laoss for the year ended
March 31, 2024 Rs. 12.93 Lakhs).

** Inventory lying with third parties amounted to Rs, 82.00 (March 31,2024; Rs. 71.91 lakhs).
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As at As at

9 Investments March 31,2025  March 31, 2024

Investments in mutual funds (measured at FVTPL)

Unguoted

Nil units of Aditya Birla Sunlife Lignid Fund (March 31, 2024: 2,56,978.52 units) - 991.07
19,302.07 units of Aditya Birla Sunlife Money Manager Fund (March 31, 2024: Nil) 142,60 -
Total 142.09 1.0
Aggregate amount of unguoted investments and market value therof 14z.00 991.07

10 Trade receivables

Accounting policy
Trade receivables are amounts due from customers {or goods sold or services performed in the ordinary course of business and reflect the Company's unconditional right to consideration (that is,
Ppayment is due only on the passage oftime),

Trade receivables are recognised initially 41 the tranzaction price as they do not contain significant financing components. The Company holds the trade receivables with the objective of collecting
the contractual cash flows and therefiire measures them subsequently at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less loss allowance.

0 As at As at
Trade receivables March 31,2025  March 31, 2024
At amortised cost
Trade receivables frum others 288.97 94.21
Trade receivables from related parties (refer note 39) 62.36 71.82
Total 351.33 166.03
Break up for security details: As at As at

March 31, 2025 March 41, 2024

Trade receivables
Considered good - Unsecured, considered good 351.33 166.03
Creddit impuired - =

Total 33143 1hh.0yg

Impairment allowance s

Trade receivables - credit impaired = "
Total 351.3; 166.03

Note:- No trade receivables are due from directors or other officers of the Company either severally or jointly with any other person.

The Company creates allowance for all trade receivables based on lifetime expected credit loss model (ECL). The maximum expasure io credit sk at the reporting date is the carrying value of each
class of financial assets, The Company does not hold collateral as secur ity. Based on the evaluation made by the management, ¢ pecten] credit loss recognised in the current year is Nil (March 31,
2024: Nil).

ing of Trade receivaliles

Outstanding as on March 3 1,2025 for following perods fram the due date
Particul Unbilled D Total
articulars nhille RetDue Lesothnme 6 months -1 1-2 years 2-3 Years More than 3 Years ota
Months year
Undisputed Trade receivables:
Considered pood - - 28075 60,78 - 0.5a - 351.43
which have significant increase i credit fsk x - - - £z = = -
Credit Tmpaired - ~ - - = = - -
Dispited Trade receivables:
Considered good - - - - S = = =
whith have significant jnereass In credit fak - = - - = - = =
Credit Impaired - = = - - . - -
Totul - - 280.75 60.78 - 0.80 - 25122

Aging of Trade receivables
Outstanding as on Mareh 31,2024 for fallowing perfods from the due date
. . ———standy ,-L____—;Ll__'l__..,l_ perivas fiy T— zoundnte
Particulars Unbilled Not Due Lessthan 6 [ 6 months-1 P 2-3 Years More than 3 Years Total
Months vear
Undisputed Trade receivables;
Considered good - - 162 Bt 0.94 229 - - 166,03
which have significant Increase in crodit ek - - - ¥ = = = -
Credit Impaired - - - - - - = -
Disputedt Trode recoivalies;
Conzidered good = = = = = = = =
which have sigaificant Increase In credit sk - - - = = = - =
Creddit Impairesd B = - = = 5 T =
Tatal - - 162.86 0.94 2.22 - - J@
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i1

13

Cash and cash equivalents

Balances with bank:

Current accounts
Cash on hand
Total

Security deposits

At amortised cost
Current (unsecured, considered good)
Total

Other financial assets

At amortised cost
Advance to employees
Total

Other current assets

Prepayments

Balanee with government authorities (ather than income tax)
Adyane tu suppliers

Capital advances

Total

As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
53.86 ' 32.09
2456 arzn

2242 6539

Asat As at
March 31, 2025 Mareh 31, 2024
710 206,67
LT Y
As at As at

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

gL04 42 H5
5L04 4285

Asat Asmn
March g1, 2005 March 31, 2024
d7.0d 55.84
15.45 54.95
128.62 A0

105.04 270
285.85 153,55
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15 Equity share capital

Authorised share capital
Equity shares of Rs. 10 each
As at April o1, 2023
Increase during the year

As at March 31, 2024
Increase during the year

As at March 31, 2025

hseribed an id-up equity share capital
Tiquity shares of Rs. 10 each issued, subseribed & fully paid up share capital
As at April o1, 2023
Issued during the year (1,93,964 equity shares of Rs.10/- each)
As at March 31, 2024
Issued during the year
As at March 31, 2025

a) Terms/rights attached 1o equity shares

The Company has only ane class of eyuity shares having par value of s, 10 per share, Eneh holder of &
liguidation of the Company, the holders of equity shures will be enlitled to receive remaini

distribution will be it proportion to the number of erjuity shares held hy the shareholders,

b) Shares held by Holding Company and/ or their subsidiaries/ associates
Out of the shares issued, the shares held by the halding campany are as below:

Aditya Birla Fashion and Retail Limited, the holding company
10,56,066 (March 31, 2024: 10,56,066) equity shares of s 10/- each

¢) Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the Company

Aditya Birla Fashion and Retail Limited
Mr. Shantanu Mehra
Mr. Nikhil Mehra

d) Details of Shareholding of Promoters:

As at March 31, 202

No. of Shares  Rs. (In Lakhs)
15,00,000 150.00
1&%0_00 150.‘00

No. of Shares

Rs. (In Lakhs)

14,69,002 146.90

1,03.964 19.40
16,62 966 166.30
16,62,0606 166.30

quity shares is entitled to one vote per share. In the event of
ng assets of the Company, after distribution of all preferential amounts, The

As at Asat

March g1, 2025 March g1, 202y

105.01 105,61
1035.61 luE.ﬁl

As at March 31, 202

No. of shares % of paidup  No. of shares % of paid up

held share capital held share capital
10,56,066 63.50% 10,56,066 63.50%
3,03,450 18.25% 3,03,450 18.25%
4,03,450 18.25% 3,03,450 18.25%
10,62,966 100.00% 16,62,966 100.00%

Shares held by promoters as at March 31, 2025
o n
Name of the Promoter No. of Shares % of total numbers | % Change during
of shares the year

Aditya Birla Fashion and Retail Linited 10,56,066 63.50% 0.00%
Mr, Shantanu Mehra 3.03.450 18.25% 0.00%
Mr, Nikhil Mehra 3,03,450 18.25% 0.00%
Total 16,62,966 100.00% 0.00%

Shares hield by promoters as at March a1, zo2gq

Name of the Promoter No. of Shares % of total numbers 5% Change during
of shares the year
Aditya Birla Fashion and Retail Limited 10,506,066 63.50% 22.50%
Mr, Shantanu Mehra 3,03,450 18.25% 0.00%
Mr, Nikhil Mehra 3,03.450 18.25% 0.00%
Total 16.62.066 100.00% 22.50%

€) There are no shares allotted for consideration other than cash during the period of five years.

f)  On October 25, 2023, the Company invited its shareholder to subseribe to a right issue of 1,93,964 equity shares at an issuc price of Rs. 1021.15 per share. The issue

was fully subseribed,
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16 Other equity

Reserves and surplus Amount
Retained earnings

As at April o1, 2023 (3,622.23)
Loss for the year (1,386.04)
Other comprehensive loss for the year (6.70)
As at March 31, 2024 (5.014.97)
Loss for the year (u69.18)
Other comprehensive loss for the year 15.07
As at March 31, 2025 (5,969.08)
Securities premium

As at April 01, 2023 4,131.16
Additions made during the year 1,980.66

As at March 31, 2024
Additions made during the year

6,111.8
—_—e e

As at March 31, 2025 6,111.82
Total

As at March 31, 2024 1,096.85
As at March 31, 2025 142.74
Retained earnings

Retained earnings comprise of the Company's current year and prior year(s) undistributed profit/(losses) after taxes.

Securities premium

Securities premium has been created conse:

Companies Act, 2013,

quent to issue of shares at premium. The reserve can be utilised in accordance with the provisions of the
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17 Borrowings

Maturity As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Non- current maturities
Term loan from finaneinl institution (unsecured)

Aditya Birls Finanee Limited (Nate B) December, 2026 903.63 -
Term loan from Bank (secured)
ICICI Bank (Note () March,2026 - 250.00
003.63 250,00
Current maturities of long-term borrowings (refer note 20)
Term loan from Bank (secured)
Axis Bank (Note A) September, 2024 - 99.23
ICICI Bank (Note C) March,2026 250.00 250.00
Term loan from financial institution (unsecured)
Aditya Birla Finanee Limited (Note B) December, 2026 Q660 909.44
340.60 1,348.67
Aggregate secured borrowings 250.00 599.23
Aggregate unsecured borrowings 1L,000.23 999,44
1,250.23 1,598.67

The Company has not defaulted on any loans payable, and there has been no breach of any loan covenants.
The Borrowings obtained by the Company from banks and financial institutions have been applied for the purpose for which such loans were
was taken.

Details of security and terms of repayment

Note A

The loan was secured by way of first charge created by hypathecation of movable property, plant and if U {exeluding vehicles) and
current ssets of the Company both present and fulure. The loan is repayable in 12 -structured guarterly instalments commencing from
December 2021, i ¢, after the moralorivm period of 12 months. Duting the year ended March 31, 2025 the Company has tepaid Bs. gg.ag
Lakhs and settled in full, The effective interest on the loan is 1 Year MCLR + 1.25%,

Note B

The Company has opted for this loan for meeting the working capital requirement. The loan is repayable in 10 structured monthly instalments
cuimencing from March 2026, i.e., after the moratorium period of 12 munths, T'he effective interest rute on the loan is 9.50%.

Note C

The loan is secured by way of first charge created by hypothecation of movable praperty, plant and equipment and current assets of the
Coupaty both present and future, The loan is repayable in 8 structured quarterly instalients. The effective interest on the loan is 1 Year

MCLR,
18 Other financial liabilities As at As at
March 31, z025 March 31, 2024
Non-Current
Security deposit 548.47 168,47
548.47 16R.47
As at As at

19 Provisions March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Non-current

Provision for gratuity (refer note 36) 349.94 363.63
Total 345.94 363.03
As at As at

20  Borrowings March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Current - Secured

Overdraft facility 79.90 802,91
Cash Credit* 321.20 174.09
Current maturities of long-term borrowings (refer note 17)* 346.60 1,348.67
Total 747.70 2,325.67

* Secured by way of charge on current assets of the Company.
** Secured hy way of charge created by hypotheeation of movable property, plant and equipment (excluding vehicles) and current assets of the
Company except WEDL from Aditya RBirla Finance Limited (unsecured loan) .
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21

22

23

24

Trade payables As at As at
March 31, March 31, 2024
Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises (refer note 35) 96.96 157.64
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises * 1,662.52 695.22
Total 1,759.48 852.86
* Includes payable to related parties, for terms and conditions with related parties (refer note 39).
Outstanding as on March 31,2025 for following periods
Particulars Unbilled Not Due from the due date Total
Less than 6 | 6 months 1-2 2o Year More than
Months 1 year vears 3 3 Years
Undisputed Trade payahles:
Micro enterprises and small enterprises - 75.28 19.22 2.46 - - - 96.06
Others 274.45 988.71 34142 7.41 39.83 10.0Q 0.61 1,662.52
Disputed Trade payables:

Micro enterprises and small enterprises - = - = - - - =
Others - - - - - - - -
Total 274.45 | 1,063.99 360.64 9.87 39.83 10.09 0.61 1,750.48

Outstanding as on March 31,2024 for following periods
from the due dat
Particulars Unbilled | Not Duc ot he cue cate Total
Less than 6 [ 6 months 1-2 2.2 Year More than
Months 1year years 3 3 Years
Undisputed Trade payables:
Micro enterprises and small enterprises - 145.36 7.83 - 4.45 - - 157,04
Others 190.11 207.19 248.56 46.05 2.14 - 117 695.22
Disputed Trade payables:

Micro enterprises and small enterprises - - - - - - - -
Others - - - - - - - -
Total 190.11 352.55 256.40 46.05 6.58 - 1.17 852.86

Other financial liabilities As at As at
March 31, March 31, 2024
Current
Interest accrued but not due 41.00 24.73
Employee benefits payable 303.14 298.90
Capital creditors (refer note 35) 9.13 4.29
Total 353.27 327.92
o Asat As at
Other current liabilitics March 31, March 31, 2024
Advance from customers 339.03 329.59
Statutory liabilities * 83.24 75.56
Total 422,27 405.15
* Includes dues towards provident fund, withholding taxes, goods and services tax, professional tax and employees state insurance corporation.
Provisions As at As at
March 31, March 31, 2024
Current
Provision for gratuity (refer note 36) 14.03 15.91
Provision for compensated absences 90.33 83.79
Share appreciation rights 30.83 14.22
Total 135.19 113.92

The amount of the provision of Re. §0.3:) Lakhs (March 31, 2024 - Rs. 83,79 Lakhs ) is presented as current since the Cuiupany does nol have an uneonditional
right to defer settlement for any of these obligations.
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25 Revenue from opeartions

@)

(i)

unting Poli

The Company is primarily engaged in the business of manufacturing and retailing high end fashion clothing. Revenue from contracts with customer is
recognised upon transfer of control of promised goods/ services to customers at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Company expect to

be entitled for those goods/ services.

To reeogiize revenues, the Company applies the following five-step approach:
- Identify the contract with & cuslomer;
Identify the performance obligations in the contract;
Determine the transaction price;
Allovate the transaction price Lo the performance tibligations in the contract; and
Recognise revenues when a perfurmance obligation is salisfied.

Reven ale ks

Sale of goods - wholesale

The Company is primarily engaged in the business of manufacturing and retailing high end garmerits, Rev

enue ftom sale of goods {s recognised when the

control of the goods has transferred, beiug when the goods are delivered to the customer and there is no unfulfilled abligation that could affect the
customer’s acceplance of the produets. Delivery oceurs when the products have been shipped to the specific location, the risks of obsnlescence and loss have
Leen transferced to the customer, and either the customer hos accepled the products in accordance with the sales terms, the acceplanee provisions have
lapsed, or the Company has objective evidence that all eciterin for aceeptance huve been satisfied. No significan! element of finaneing is deemetd present as
the sales are made with a evedit term of approximately 30 doys, which is consistent with market practice, A receivable is recognised when the goods are
delivered as this is the point in time that the consideration is uneonditiona! hecause only the passage of time is required before the payment is due. The
Company does not have a return policy for wholesale customer and hence no refund liahility created in the books,

f = retail

The Company aperates a chain of retail stoves for high end garments. Reventie from the sale of gaods is recognised when Company sells a goad to the
customer. Payment of the transaction price is due immedinately when the cuslomer purchases the goods and lukes delivery in store. The Company does not

have a return policy for retail customer and hence no refund liability ereated in the books far retail sale.

Income frrgm serviceg

Income from services is recognised as they are rendered based on agreements/ arrangements with the concerned parties, and recognised net of goods and

services tax/ applicahle taxes.

Interest Income

Interest income on all debt instruments is measured either at amortised cost or at fair value through OCL Interest income is recorded nsing the effective
interest rate (EIR). EIR is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated fumre cash payments or receipls over the expeeted life of the financial instewmen] or

a shorter period, where appropriate, to the gross earrying amount of the finaucial assel or to the amortised cost of

i financial lability, When caleulating the

EIR, the Company estimates the expected cash flows by considering all the contractual terms of the financial instrument (for exmmple: prepayment,
extension, vall and similar options), but does not consider the expected credit losses. Interest income is includud in other ineome in the Statement of Profit

and Loss.

Contract asset

A contract assetis the right to consideration in exchange for gosds or serviess transferred to the cuslamer,

I the Company performs by transferring goods

or services la a customer before the customer pays ronsideration or before payment is due, a contract asxel is recognised for the earned consideration,

Revenue in exceds of invoicing are classified as contract assets (which is referred as unbilled revenue).

Contract liahility

A contract liability is the obligation to transfer goods or services to a customer for which the Company has received consideration (or an amount of
consideration is due) from the customer. If a customer pays consideration before the Company transfers goods or services to the customer, a contract
liability is recognised when the payment is made, or the payment is due (whichever is earlier). Contract liabilities are recognised as revenue when the

Company performs under the contract. Invoicing in excess of revenues are classified as contract liabilities (which is referred as deferred revenue).

Revenue from operations

Revenue from contract with customers

Year ended
March g1, 2025

Year ended
March 31, 2024

Sale of products 8,797.67 8,435.69
Revenue from rendering of services
Nesigning and alteration services 167.78 103.48
Rental income from garments 3.46 -
Other operating income
Royalty Fees 7.36 2.96
Serap Sale - L4
Total B.976,27 8,544.17
(a) Contract balances Year ended Year ended
March 21, 2025 March 31, 2024
Contract liabilities
Advances received from customers 339.03 329.59
Contract assets
Trade receivables 351.33 166.03
(b) Reconciliation of revenue as recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss with the Year ended Year ended

contracted price:

Revenue as per contracted price
Less: discount
Revenuc as per the Statement of Profit and Loss

March g1, 2025

March 31, 2024

10,028.51
(1.052.24)

10,041.58
(1,408 41)

8,976.27
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25

27 (a)

27 (b)

28

29

30

(c) Disclosure of disaggregated revenue recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss:

Revenue from retail operations
Revenue from non-retail operations
Total

Other income

Gain on transfer of leases to sublease

Interest income from financial assets at amortised cost
Gain on termination of leases

Interest income on income tax refund

Profit on sale of property, plant and equipments

Net gain on sale of current investments

Fair value gain on financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Miscellaneous Income

Foreign exchange gain (net)

Provision no longer required written back

Total

Cost of material consumed
Raw material consumed

Inyentory at the beginning of the year
Add: Purchases

Less: Inventory at the end of the year
Total

Purchase of stock in trade

Purchase of stock in trade
Total

Changes in inventories of finished goods, work-in-progress and stock-in-trade

Opening inventories
Finished goods
Work-in-progress
Stock-in-trade

Less:

Closing inventories
Finished goods
Work-in-progress
Stock-in-trade

(Increase)/ Decrease in inventories

Employee benefits expense

Salaries, wages and bonus

Cantrilutlon to provident and other funds (net) [refer note 36]
Gratuity expenses (refer note 36)

Share hased payment to employees

Staff welfare expense

Total

Finance costs

Interest expense on borrowings

Interest expense on lease Liabilities (refer note 4.3)

Other borrowing cost

Interest on micro, small and medium enterprises (refer note 35)
Interest expense on others !

Total

Year ended
March i1, 2025

Year ended
March 31, 2024

7,501.93 7,683.12
1,474.94 Aoo.og
8,0706.27 8,543.17
Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
238.22 -
109.62 61.72
73.08 C
73.10 =
56.57 >
42.79 4.54
1.83 18.53
0.60 -
- 0.62
- 25,62
505.81 11.03
Year ended Year ended

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

435.87 392.49
816.16 569.94
1,252.03 961.83
(734.37) (435.87)
517.66 525.06
1,160.72 L137.45
1,169.72 1,137.45
Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2025 March 21, 2024
612.36 615.41
210.19 44.09
T37.54 q26.21
1,560.09 985.71
540.69 612.36
255.13 210.19
729.23 737-54
1,525.05 1,560.09
35.04 (574.38)
Year ended Year ended
March 21, 2025 March 31, 2024
2,814.47 2,977.25
90.38 114.27
72.47 79.12
16.62 2.71
48.26 45,16
3:,042.20 3.208.51
Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
106.24 207.22
489.84 583.38
1.34 2,46
9.42 19.27
46.08 1.14
743.82 813.52
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32

33

Depreciation and amortization expense

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment (refer note 3.1)
Amortisation of intangible assets (refer note 3.2)
Amortisation of right-of-use assets (refer note 4.1)

Total

Other expenses

Rent (including franchisee commission) (Refer Note 38)
Dyeing, embroidery, designing and processing charges
Commission

Advertisement and sales promotion

Legal and professional expenses

Payment to auditors *

Power, fuel and water charges

Travelling and conveyance

Postage expenses

Transportation & handling Charges

Repair and maintenance

- Building

- Plant and machinery

- Others

Bank and credit card charges

Foreign exchange loss-(net)

Outsourcing, housekeeping and security expenses
Rates and taxes

Insurance

Information technology expenses
Communication expenses

Printing and stationary

Loss on sale of property, plant and equipment
Donation

Miscellaneous expenses

Total

* Payment to auditors:

For audit fees
Re-imbursement of expenses
Total

Income tax expense
The major components of income tax expense are as follows:

Statement of Profit and Loss:
Profit or loss section

Current income tax:
Current income tax charge
Taxes pertaining to prior periods

Deferred tax:
Relating Lo originatlon and reversal of temporary differences

Total

Accounting loss before income tax

Tax credit at India's statutory income tax rate of 25.17%
Computed tax credit

(A)

®)

(A+B)

Tax effect of amounts which are not deductible (taxable) in calculating taxable income:

Deferred tax asset not recognised in the absence of reasonable certainty

Tax losses for which no deferred tax recognised
Income tax expense

Year ended
March 31, 2025

Year ended
March 31, 2024

365.06 437.77
29.59 35.43
1,147.32 1,311.36
1,541.97 1,784.56
Year ended Year ended

March 31, 2025

March 31, 2024

751.29 305.51
240.74 683.05
144.36 175.30
761.87 717.22
487.35 378.89
12.68 7.79
119.44 131.75
50.38 135.25
453 4.37
124.74 115.86
3.10 5.56
4.40 2,01
145.88 162.30
89.42 83.30
0.17 -
187.72 128.51
35.95 28.90
33.37 30.22
190.22 114.22
24.19 12.63
8.03 11.93
- 0.09
5.00 -
66.02 69.80
3,490.85 2.304.46

Year ended
March 31, 2025

Year ended
March 31, 2024

1150 6.60

1.18 1.1Q

12,68 7.79

Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

= (159.84)
- (159.84)
- (159.84)

Year ended
March g1, 2025

Year ended
March 31, 2024

(969.18) (1,545.88)

25.17% 25.17%

(243.92) (389.07)
243.92 226.45
- 2,78

84
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34 Earnings per share (EPS)
Basic EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the profit/ (oss) for the year attributable to equity holders of the Company by the weighted average number of

equity shares outstanding during the year.

Diluted EPS amounts are caleulated by dividing the profit/ (loss) altributable to equity holders by the weighted average number of Equity shares outstanding
during the year plus the weighted average number of Equily shares that would be issued on conversion of all the dilutive potential Equity shares into Equity

The following reflects the loss and share data used for the basic and diluted EPS computation:

: Year ended Year ended
Particul

iy March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Loss attributable to equity holders for basic earnings per share (969.18) (1,386.04)
Net loss for calculation of basic EPS (969.18) (1,386.04)
Weighted average number of equity shares * 16,62,966.00 15,19,347.85
Basic earnings per share (in Rs.) (58.28) (91.23)
Net loss for calculation of diluted EPS (969.18) (1,386.04)
Weighted average number of equity shares * i 16,62,966.00 15,19,347.85
(58.28) (91.23)

Diluted earnings per share (in Rs.)

* The weighted average number of shares takes into account the weighted average effect of changes in share transactions during the year. There have been no
other transactions involving equity shares or potential equity shares between the reporting date and the date of authorisation of these financial statements.

35 Details of dues to micro and small enterprises as defined under the MSMED Act, 2006
Under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006, (MSMED) which came into force from October 02, 2006, certain disclosures are
required to be made relating to Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises. On the basis of the information and records available with the management, there are no

outstanding dues to the Micro, Small and Medijum Enterprises development Act, 2006,

The following disclosures are required under Section 22 of MSMED Act, 2006 under the chapter of delayed payment to micro and small enterprises:

q As at As at
Particulars March 31, 2025 | March 31, 2024
Principal amount due to suppliers reglstered under the MSMED Act and remaining unpaid as al year end,* 99,36 160.20
Interest due to suppliers registered under the MSMED Act and remaining unpaid as at year end. 33.61 24.19
Principal amounts paid to suppliers registered under the MSMED Act, beyond the appointed day during the year, 642.53 699.50
Interest paid, under Section 16 of MSMED Act, to suppliers registered under the MSMED Act, beyond the appointed day
during the year. B -
Interipst paid, other than under Section 16 of MSMED Act, to suppliers registéred under the MSMED Act, beyond the
appointed day during the year, = =
Amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment (which have been paid but beyond the g 8
appointed day during the year) but without adding the interest specified under the MSMED Act, 53 18.54
Interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of the accounting year. 33.61 24.19
Amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years, until such date when the interes!
dues above are actually paid to the small enterprise, for the purpose of disallowance of a deductible expenditure nder 24.19 4.92
Section 23 of the MSMED Act.

* Includes dues towards capital creditors amounting to Rs. 2.40 (March 31, 2024: Rs. 2.56).
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36 Employee benefits expenses

A. Defined contribution plans
(i) Employers' contribution to Provident Fund

The Company has defined contribution plan in form of Provident Fund for qualifying employees. Contributions are made to provident fund for employees at the rate of
12% of salary as per regulations. The contributions are made to Employee Provident Fund Organization (EPFO) registered provident fund administered by the
Government of India. The obligation of the Company is limited to the amount contributed and it has no further contractual or construciive ubligation,

The expense recognised during the year towards defined contribution plan is Rs. 81.50 Lakhs (March 31, 2024: Rs. 98.87).
(i) Employers' contribution to Employee's state insurance scheme is Rs. 8.88 Lakhs (March 31, 2024: Rs. 15.40 Lakhs). )
B. Defined benefit plans

The Company has a defined benefit gratuity plan as per The Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972, Under the gratuity plan, every employee who has completed at least five
years of service gets a gratuity on departure at 15 days of last drawn salary for each completed year of service.

The following tables summarize the components of net benefit expense that has been recognised in the statement of profit and loss and the funded status and amount
recognised in the balanee sheet:

(i) The amounts recognised in the balance sheet and the movements in the defined benefit obligation over the year are as follows:
Changes in the defined benefit obligation as at March 31, 2025:

As at As at
March 31. 2025 March 31, 2024

Opening defined benefit obligation 379.54 309.03
Current service cost 45.16 57.74
Interest cost 27.31 21.38
Total (V9] 452.01 388.15
Actuarial (gain)/ loss on account of

Changes in financial assumptions 21.67 11.31

Experience adjustments (36.74) (3.28)
Actuarial (gain)/ loss recognised in OCI B) (15.07) 8.03
Benefits paid C) (68.95) (16.64)
Transfer in/out D) (4.02) -
Closing defined benefit obligation (A+B+C+D) 363.97 379.54
Bifurcation between current and non current liability

As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Current 14.03 15.91
Non-current 349.94 363.63
Net Liability 363.97 379.54
(ii) The amounts recognised through Statement of Profit and Loss and other comprehensive income
Year ended Year ended

Particulars

Gratuity cost charged to Statement of Profit or Loss

March 21, 2025

March 31, 2024

Current service cost 45.16 57.74
Interest expense 2731 21,38
Total 72.47 79.12
Gratuity cost charged to other comprehensive income

Actuarial (gain)/ loss (15.07) 8.03
Total (15.07) 8.03
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(iif) The principal assumptions used in determining gratuity benefit obligations for the Company’s plans are shown below:

q As at As at
ST March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Discount rate 6.70% 7.20%
Salary escalation rate 9.00% 9.00%
Retirement age 60 Years 60 Years
Attrition rate
Up to 30 Years 9.00% X 9.00%
31-45 Years 6.00% 6.00%
Above 45 Years 2.00% 2.00%

100% of IALM 2012- 100% of JALM 2012-
Mortality rate 14 14

(iv) A quantitative sensitivity analysis for significant assumption is as shown below:
The sensitivity analysis below have been determined based on reasonably possible changes of the assumptions occurring at the end of the reporting period, while
holding all other assumptions constant, The results of sensitivity analysis is given below:

Impact of defined benefit obligation - increase/ (decrease)

As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Sensitivity level
Discount Rate
0.5% increase (21.56) (22.01)
0.5% decrease 23.61 24.06

Salary escalation rate

0.5% increase 17.75 19.14
0.5% decrease (16.76) (18.36)

The sensitivity analysis presented above may not be representative of the actual change in the defined benefit obligation as it is unlikely that the change in assumptions
would occur in isolation of one another as some of the assumptions may be correlated.

(v) The following represents expected cash flow profile for the defined benefit plan in future years :

q As at As at
EBazticulass March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Within the next 12 months (next annual reporting period) 14.03 15.91
Between 2 and 5 years 72.19 74.45
Between 6 and 10 years 137.99 164.61
Beyond 10 years 777.29 861.52
Total expected cash flow profile (payments) 1,001.50 1,116.49

The weighted average duration of the defined benefit plan obligation at the end of the reporting period is 13 years (March 31, 2024: 13 years).
Expected contributions to defined benefits plan for the year ended March 31, 2024 is Rs. Nil (March 31, 2024: Rs. Nil).




Finesse International Design Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the ycar ended March 31, 2025
(All amounts are in (Rs.) Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

37 Commitments and contingencies

a) Capital commitment

Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account and not provided for:
The Company has Capital commitments as on the Balance Sheet date of Rs. Nil (March 31, 2024: 1.51 Lakhs).

b) Contingent liabilities

Claims against the Company not
acknowledged as debts

(i) The Company has received a show cause cum demand notice under Form DRC-01 dated December 28, 2023 for the FY 2018-19 in which it has been alleged that the
company has availed Input Tax Credit (ITC) in respect of invoices issued by supplier who has not filed their GSTR-3B returns for the relevant tax period, resulting in
non-payment of tax charged in respect of such supply to the Government amounting to INR 7.60 Lakhs. The Company has duly filed a detailed reply stating that there
was no requirement of matching ITC availed in GSTR 3B with ITC available in GSTR 2A during the relevant period and is confident that the outcome is unlikely to
result in a claim against the Company, During the year ended March 31, 2025, the Company have paid this demand in full on July 03, 2024,

(if) The Company has received a show cause cum demand notice under Form DRC-01 dated August 05, 2024 under Section 74 for the FY 2017-18 in which the
adjudicating authority has confirmed the tax demand on aceount of non-payment of tax under reverse charge mechanism on Online Information Database Access and
Retrieval services (‘OIDAR’) services, resulting in non-payment of tax under reverse charge mechanism in respect of such services amounting to INR 7.10 Lakhs. The
Company has duly filed a detailed reply stating that the Company has not taken such services, and such transactions are also not reflected in GSTR 2B. The Company is
confident that the outcome is unlikely to result in a claim against the Company.

(iii) The Company has received penalty orders under Section 271AAC of the IT Act for the assessment year 2017-18 and 201819 during the year ended March 31, 2024. The
Company had filed further appeal against the penalty demand of Rs. 24.01 Lakhs and is confident that the outcome is unlikely to result in a claim against the Company,
Further, the Company has recourse to indemnification provided by the promoters of the Company vide the Share Subscription and Purchase Agreement executed with
the Company. During the year, the Company have received ther order from Commissioner of Income Tax (Appeals) dated September 26, 2024 wherein the matter has
been adjudicated in favor of the Company. There is no communication received from the department for filing any appeal against the order of the Commissioner of
Income Tax (Appeals).

(iv) The Company has received assessment orders under Section 1534 of the IT Act for the assessment year 2017-18 and 2018-19. The Company had filed further appeal
against the tax demand of Rs. 101.58 Lakhs and is confident that the outcome is unlikely to result in a clain1 against the Company. Further, the Company has recourse
to indemnification provided by the promoters of the Company vide the Share Subscription and Purchase Agreement executed with the Company. During the year
ended March 31, 2024, the Company has received the order from the ITAT dated December 13, 2023 wherein the matter has been adjudicated in favor of the Company.
There is no communication received from the department for filing any appeal against the order of the ITAT.

(v) The Company has received penalty orders under Section 271DA of the IT Act for the assessment year 2018-19 and 2019-20 and the tax penalty made was Rs. 28.56
Lakhs The Company had filed further appeal against the penalty demand of Rs. 15,38 Lakhs and is confident that the outcome is unlikely to result in a claim against the
Company, for the balance penalty the Company has received a favorable outcome during the year. Further, the Company has recourse to indemnification provided by
the promoters of the Company vide the Share Subscription and Purchase Agreement executed witl the Company. The Company has received the order from the TTAT
dated April 02, 2024 wherein the matter has been adjudicated in favor of the Company. There is no communication received from the department for filing any appeal
against the order of the 1TAT,
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38 Leases

i)

ii)

Lease commitments as lessee

The Company has entered into agreements for taking on lease certain office/ store premises, warehouses, on lease basis. The lease term is for a period ranging from
3 to 9 years, with escalation clauses in the lease agreements. Consistent with industry practice, the Company has contracts which have fixed rentals or variable
rentals based on a percentage of sales at stores.

Expenses/ (income) recognised in the Statement of Profit and loss:

Year ended Year ended

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Rent
Expense relating to short term leases - -
Variable rent * 75199 305.51
Total rent expense 751.29 305.51
Finance cost
Interest expense on lease liabilities 489.84 583.38
Amortisation expense
Amortisation expense for right-of-use assets 124732 1,311.36
Total Expense 2,388.45 2,200.25
Income from subleasing of asset
Income from subleasing of asset 61,00 14.10
Total Income 61.00 14.10

Future Cash Outflows to which the Company is potentially exposed and not reflected in measurement of lease liabilities:

Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Impact on rent due to change in sales
Increase in sales by 5% 37.56 15.28
Decrease in sales by 5% (37.56) (15.28)

* The variable rent varies basis percentage of Net Sales Value (NSV) at the lease premises.

The Company does not have any leases of low value assets.

Extension and termination option are included in-major leases contracls of the Company . These are used to maximise operational flexibility in terms of managing
the assets used in the Company's aperations. The majority of extension and lermination oplions held are exercised by the Company and lessor,

iii) Total cash outflow for leases for the year ended year ended March 31, 2024 is Rs. 1,340.53 Lakhs (March 31, 2024: Rs.1,641.56 Lakhs).
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39 Related party disclosures

a. Names of related parties and nature of relationship

Names of related parties

Related Party who exercise control

Aditya Birla Fashion and Retail Limited Holding Company

Key management personnel

Shantanu Mehra Chief Executive Officer and Whole Time Divector (w.e.f. Septemeber 29, 2023)
Nikhil Mehra Chief Design Officer and Whole Time Director (w.e.f. Septemeber 29, 2023)
Ashish Dikshit Director

Jagdish Bajaj Director (w.e.f January 16, 2023)

Ullal Sooraj Bhat Director (w.e.f January 16, 2023)

Sushil Agarwal Director (upto January 16, 2023)

Rajesh Annamalai Chief Financial Officer

Relatives of Director
Rima Shakhder Mehra Spouse of Shantanu Mehra
Vidushi Mehra Spouse of Nikhil Mehra

b. Transactions with related parties

Transactions with related parties are made on terms equivalent to those that prevail in arm’s length transactions. There have been no guarantees provided or received
for any related party receivables or payables. For the year ended March 31, 2025, the Company has not recorded any impairment of receivables relating to amounts
owed by related parties. This assessment is undertaken each financial year through examining the financial position of the related party and the market in which the
related party operates,

Name of related parties with whom transactions have taken place during the relevant financial year

Name of related parties

Holding Company

Aditya Birla Fashion and Retail Limited (a) Sale of Goods
(b) Purchase of raw material and stock in trade
(c) Legal and professional fees
(d) Brokerage and commission
(e) Reimbursement of expenses

r Max t Personnel
Shantanu Mehra
Nikhil Mehra

The following table provides the total amount of transactions that have been entered into with related parties for the relevant financial year:

Year ended Year ended
Nature of Transaction Relation March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Sales of goods Holding company 73.94 95.70
Purchase of raw material and stock in trade Holding company 689.48 512.40
Legal and professional fees Holding company 243.84 143.27
Brokerage and commission Holding company 61.45 50.06

Reimbursement of expenses (Corporate overhead allocation) Holding company 150.00 150.00
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c. Outstanding balances

40

a)
b)

The following table provides the closing balances of related parties for the relevant financial year:

i As at As at
Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Payables
Holding Company 275.61 84.12
Key management personnel = =
Receivables
Holding Company 62.36 71.82
Key management personnel 17.96 29.76
Compensation of key management personnel of the Company
Nature of tr 4 Year ended Year ended

GILECONIEansacuoTL March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Salaries, wages and bonus 655.00 645.30
Post employment benefits * = -
Total 655.00 645.30

The amounts disclosed in the table are the amounts recognised as an expense during the reporting period related to key management personnel.

*“Does not include gratuity, leave encashment, employer contribution to provident fund and share based payment expense, as it is not ascertainable at individual
employee level.

Segment information

Business segment
The Company is engaged in manufacturing and retailing of high-end fashion clothing which is governed by similar risks and returns and is considered as a single
segment. The Board of Directors reviews the Company level data and accordingly no additional disclosures are required as per Ind AS 108 on Operating Segments,

Geographical segment
The "Geographical Segment", comprises domestic segment which includes sales to customer located in India and the overseas segment includes sales to customers
located outside India.

Significant clients
The Company does not have any customer individually to account for more than 10% of the revenue for the year ended March 31, 2025 and March 31, 2024,

Particulars March, 31 2025 March, 31 2024

Domestic Overseas Total Overseas Overseas Total
Segment Revenue by location of customers 8,057.63 18,64 8,976.27 8,520.80 22.37 8,543.17
Carrying Amount of Segment Assets (a) 351.33 - 351.33 166.03 - 166.03
Unallocated Assets (b) = - 11,149.34 - - 12,061.19
Addition to tangible and intangible assets 170.73 = 170.73 239.69 - 239.69
Notes:-

Carrying Amount of Segment Assets includes Trade receivables
Unallocated Assets include all assets except Trade receivables
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41 Financial instruments - Fair value

Accounting classification and fair values
The carrying value and fair value of financial instruments by categories as at March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2023 are as follows:

Amortised Total carrying Fair value

LAYLBHE LAY cost value Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
As at March 31, 2025
Financial assets
Investments 142.69 - - 142.69 142.69 - =
Security deposits - - 627.91 627.91 - - 627.91
Net investment in sub lease 1,045.07 1,045.07 1,045.07
Trade receivables - - 351.33 351.33 - - 351.33
Cash and cash equivalents - - 77.42 77.42 - - 77.42
Other financial assets - - 51.04 51.04 - - 51.04
Total 142,00 = 2,152.77 2,205.40 142.69 - 2,152.77
Financial liabilities
Borrowings - - 1,651.33 1,651.33 - - 1,651.33
Trade payables - - 1,759.48 1,759.48 - - 1,759.48
Other financial liabilities - - 901.74 901.74 - - 001.74
Total - - 4,312.55 4,312.55 - - 4,312.54
As at March 31, 2024
Financial assets
Investments 991,07 - - 991.07 991.07 - -
Security deposits - - 580.20 580.20 - - 580.20
Net investment in sub lease 211.23 211.23 211.23
Trade receivables - - 166.03 166.03 - - 166.03
Cash and cash equivalents - - 65.29 65.20 - - 65.29
Other financial assets - - 42.85 42.85 - - 42.85
Total 091.07 - 1,065.60 2,056.67 991.07 - 1,065.60
Financial liabilities
Borrowings = - 2,575.67 2,575.67 % = 2,575.67
Trade payables - - 852.86 852.86 - - 852.86
Other financial liabilities - - 496.39 ©496.39 = - 496.39

Total - = 3.924.92 3.924.92 - - 3,924.91
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42 TFinancial risk management objectives and policies

The Company’s principal financial liabilities comprise of borrowings, lease liabililies, trade payables and employee related payables. The main purpose of these
financial liabilities is to finance the Company’s operations. The Company’s principal financial assets include trade and other receivables, and cash and cash
erpuivalent that derive dirvectly from its operations. The Company does not enters into derivative transactions.

The Company is exposed to market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Company’s management oversees the management of these risks. The Company's
management is responsible to ensure that Company's financial risk activities which are gpverned by uppropriate policies and procedures and such financinl risks are
identified, measured and managed in accordance with the Company’s policies and risk objectives. The Board of Directors reviews and agrees palicies for managing
each of these risks, which are summarised below.

(i) Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices. Market risk includes
interest rate risk.

(a) Interest Rate Risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. The Company
has significant debt obligations with floating interest rates, hence, is exposed to interest rate risk.

(b) Interest rate sensitivity

The following table demaonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in interest rates on that portion of loans and borrowings affected. With all other

variables held constant, the Company's loss before tax is affected through the impact on borrowings, as follows:

Effect on losses

Increase/ decrease before tax
in basis points increase/
(decrease)
March 31, 2025
Rs. +50 8.26
Rs, -50 (8.26)
March 31, 2024
Rs. +50 12.88
Rs. -50 (12.88)

(ii) Credit Risk

Credit risk s the risk that counterparty will not meet its obligations under a financial instrument or customer contract, leading to a financial loss. To manage this, the
Company periodically assesses financial reliability of eustomers and other counterparties, taking into account the financial condition, current economic trends, and
analysis ol historical bad debts and ageing of financial assets. Credit risk from balances with banks and finaneia] institutions is managed by the Company's Lreasury
department in accordance with the Company’s policy. Investments of surplus funds are made only with approved counterparties and within credit limits assigned to
each counterparty,

Financial assets are written off when there is no reasonable expectations of recovery, such as a debtor failing to engage in a repayment plan with the Company.
Where loans or receivables have been written off, the Company continues to engage in enforcement activity to attempt to recover the receivable dues where
recoveries are made, these are recognised as income in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

The Company is exposed to credit risk from its operating activities (primarily trade receivables and security deposits).

Trade receivables

Customer credit risk is managed as per the Company’s established policy, procedures and control relating to customer credit risk management, Outstanding
customer receivables are regularly monitored.

The majarity of the sales of the Company happens without eridit. The Company does nol have significant trade receivables. An impairmenl analysiz is performed at
cach reporting date on an individual basis for major clients. The moximum exposiire to credit risk at the reporting date is the carrying value of each class of financial
assets. The Company does not hold collateral ns security. The Conspany evaluates Lhe concentration of rigk with respect to trade receivables ag low om the hasis of
past default rates of its customers.

Cash and Cash equivalents and Bank deposits
Credit risk related to cash and cash equivalents and bank deposits is managed by only accepting highly rated banks and diversifying bank deposits accounts in
different banks across the country.

Other Financial Assets

Other financial assets are measured at amortised cost includes security deposits, and others. Credit risk related to these other financial assets is managed by
monitoring the recoverability of such amounts continuously.
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(iii) Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting financial obligations due to shortage of funds. The Company's financing activities are
managed centrally by maintaining an adequate level of cash and cash equivalents to finance the Company's operations. The Company uses bank loans as a mode of
funding. The Company manages its surplus funds centrally by placing them with reputable financial institution with high credit rating and no history of default.

The below tables summarises the maturity profile of the Company’s financial liabilities based on contractual payments (undiscounted basis):

Less than 1

oo 1to 5years More than 5 years Total
As at March 31, 2025
Trade payables 1,759.48 - - 1,759.48
Borrowings 747.70 903.63 - 1,651.33
Lease liabilities 1,861.13 5,273.09 277.00 7,411.22
Other financial liabilities q53.27 248.47 = Q901.74
4,721.58 6,725.19 277.00 11,723.77
As at March 31, 2024
Trade payables 852.86 - - 852.86
Borrowings 2,325.67 250.00 - 2,575.67
Lease liabilities 1,741.01 4,970.64 988.83 7,700.48
Other financial liabilities 327.92 168.47 - 496.39
5:247.40 5.380.11 9HB8.83 11,625.40
Capital management

The Company’s objective, when managing capital is to ensure the going concern operation and to maintain an efficient capital structure to reduce the cost of capital,
support the corporate strategy and meet shareholder’s expectations. The policy of the Company is to borrow funds through bauks/ financial institutions supported
by committed borrowing facilities to meet anticipated funding requirements. The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments in the light of

changes in economic conditions and the requirement of financial markets.

The capital structure is governed by policies approved by the Board of Directors, and is monitored by various metrics. Funding requirements are reviewed

periodically with any debt issuances.

The following table summarises the capital of the Company (debts excludes lease liabilities):
As at
March 31, 2025

As at
March 31, 2024

Borrowings 903.63 250.00
Current maturities of long term borrowings 747.70 2,325.67
Less: Cash and cash equivalents (77.42) (65.29)
Net debt 1,573.91 2,510.38
Total equity 209,04 1,263.15
Total equity 200.04 1,263.15
Net debt to equity ratio 5.09 1.99
Assets pledged as security
The carrying amounts of assets pledged as security for current and non-current borrowings are:

Notes As at Asat

b March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Current
Floating charge
Inventories 8 2,259.42 1,995.96
Trade receivables 10 351.33 166.03
Total current assets pledged as security 2,610.75 2,161.99
Non-Current
Tirst Charge
Property, Plant and equipment (excluding Vehicles) 361 901.51 1,370.23
Total non-currents assets pledged as security 901.51 1,370.23
Total assets pledged as security 3,518,206 3.532.22

There are no charge or satisfaction which are yet to be registered with the Registrar of Companies beyond the statutory period.

Relationship with struck off companies

The Company did not have any transactions with struck off companies under section 248 of the Companies Act 2013 or Section 560 of the Companies Act 1956

during the year ended March 31, 2025 and March 31, 2024.
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46 Borrowings Securcd Against Current assets

‘Working .
Quarter | Name of | Capital Limit Particular of Amount as per Amou:t = repml'ted ™| Amount of | Reason for material
(FY25) the bank | Sanctioned (in | securities provided | books of account LOCIEY Y difference discrepancies
Lakhs) return/statement
Inventories 2,268.76 2,268.76 - _|No differences
Q1 Axis Bank 800 Trade Receivable 169.22 169.22 - |No differences
Trade Pavable (576.52) (576.52) - _|No differences
Inventories 2,186.20 2,186.20 - _|No differences
Q2 Axis Bank 800 Trade Receivable 172.63 172.63 - |No differences
Trade Payable (652.42) (614.58) - |No differences
Inventories 2,280.80 2,280.80 - |No differences
Q3 Axis Bank 800 Trade Receivable 277.86 277.86 - _|No differences
Trade Payable (717.01) (461.60) - |No differences
Inventories 2,250.41 2,259.41 - _|No differences
Q4 Axis Bank 800 Trade Receivable 3651.33 351.33 - _|No differences
Trade Payable (965.00) (965.00) - |No differences
‘Workin q
Quarter | Name of Capital Lixgm't Particular of Amount as per Amountas reported in Amount of | Reason for material
(FY24) the bank | Sanctioned (in | securities provided | books of account thelauarierly difference discrepancies
Lakhs) return/statement
Invenlories 1,637.05 1,647.95 - |Nodifferences
Q1 Axis Bank 800 Trade Receivable 1i6.10 116.10 - |Nodifftrences
Trade Payoble [764.49) (764.44) - |Nodifferences
Inventories 2,102.63 2,102.63 - |Na differences
Q2 Axis Bank 800 Trade Receivable 42,78 92,78 - Mo differences
Trade Payable (1,080,31) (1,089.31) (0.00) [No differences
Inventories 2,218.65 2,218.65 - |Nodifferences
Q3 Axis Bank 800 Trade Receivable 159.65 150,65 - |No differences
Trade Payable (653.95) (653.95) 0.00 |No differences
Inventories 1L, 095.G7 1,005.0 - |Nodifferences
Q4 Axis Bank 8oo Trade Receivable 166.0 166.03 - | Nodifferences
Trade Payable (363.32) l (363.32) - | Nodifferences

* Diserepancy below 10% considered immaterial, henee not explained
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47 Aualytical Rutios

Ratin
Particulars Numerator Denominator prespended) frcarnded % Variaton |Reason for variation more than 25%
Mavch 31, | March 31,
2025 2024

Current ratio Current assets | Curveit liahilities (Refer nobe 1) 0.98 0.B5 14.27%|Not applizble
Debt-equity ratio Total debt (Refer note 2) Total Equily (Refer note 2) 0.68 0.66 4,14%| Not ngglimblc

. or " Earnings available for debt serviee . Change is due to decrease in profit before,
Debl service coverage rutio {Refer note 3) Debt service (Refer note 3) (118) (2.74) (56.93%) tax during the year
Return On Equily (Refer note 4) :ﬁ::;:‘s LitcyllaxeellPrclrenzs Average sharcholder’s equity (1.23) (1.44) (14.85%)| Not applicable
Isl;\m!ur_v Yurirovet: (Rofoz note |Revenue frum Operation [ Average inventory 4.22 5.06 (16.60%)| Not applicable

Change is due to increase in debtol
Debtors turnover (Refer note 6) [Revenue from Operation Average lrade receivable 34.70 69.75 (50.25%)[during the year and corr i
decrease in revenue from aperations
. N Change 1s due to decrease in lass beforc|

Net profit ratin (Refer note 7) | Net profits after taxes Revenue from Operntion (0.11) (016) (32.95%) tax during the year
Return on Capntal Employed s P e Capital employed (0.03) (0.08) (62.49%) Change Is due to decrease in lass before]
(Refer note B) tax during the year
Trvidde Payalile Tarmn Ratin 1 = ) A
(Refernote o) Total purchases Average lrade payables 330 4.01 (17.67%]| Not applicable
Met Capitul Turnover Ratio = 5 ) P w—— Change is due tu increase in averuge
(Refor nitko 10) Revenue from Operation Average working cupitul (27.08) (8.85) 206 11%)| working capital duriug the vear
Return on Investment (Refer 5 = N} Change is duc to decrease in lass beforc
note11) Earnings before interest and taxes Total assets (o,06) (o.m) (44.05%) tax durine the vear

Ratias have been computed as follows:

1, Current ratio = Current Assets / Current Liabilitics luding Lease Linbiliti 1 as per Ind AS 116)

2. Debt equity ratio = Debt / Equity
Debt = Borrowitgs (exiluding Lease Lishilitios aconyinted na pex Inlian Accounting Standard 116) - Cash and Bank Balance (includes fixed deposits) - Liquid Investments
Equity = Equity share capital + Other equity fexclinding [niflot A ti dard 116)

3. Debt service covernge rativ = Earnings before interest (excluding impuct of interest on lease liability us per IND AS 116) and fux / {Fiunnve cost (excluding inpact of interest on lense liability as per
IND AS 116) + Prinvipul repayment of borrowings (netted off to the extent of borruwings uvailed during the same period for the ropayments)]
4. Return on equity ratio = Profit after Tax / Average of opening and closing Net Worth

S Inventory turnover = Revenue from Operatians for the period / Average of iipening and closing Inventories

6. Dehfors turnover = Revenue from Operatitin for the period / Average of aguning il closing Trade Receivables.

7. Net profit ratiu = Profit After Tax / Revenue from Operutions

8. Return on Average Capita] Einployed = Earnings Hefure Interest wul Tix / Average Capital Employed

9. Trade Payables Turnover Ratio = Net Credit Purchass / Average Trudo Payables

10.Net Capital Turnover rativ = Revenue / Average Working Capital

11.Return on Investments = Earnings Befure Interestand Tax / Avcrage Tutal Assets

12 Revenue includes Sales of products only
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Details of benami property held

No proceedings have been initiated on or are pending against the Company for holding benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of
1988) and Rules made thereunder

‘Wilful defaulter

Company have not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or government or any government authority.

Compliance with number of layers of companies

The Company has complied with the number of layers prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013.

Compliance with approved scheme(s) of arrangements

The Company has not entered into any scheme of arrangement which has an accounting impact on current or previous financial year.

Utilisation of borrowed funds and share premium

(A) The Company has not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Intermediaries) with the understanding
that the Intermediary shall:

a. directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or

b. provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the ultimate beneficiaries

(B) The Company has not received any fund from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Funding Party) with the understanding (whether recorded in
writing or otherwise) that the Company shall:

a. directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or
b. provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the ultimate beneficiaries

Undisclosed income

There is no income surrendered or disclosed as income during the current or previous year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961, that has not been

recorded in the books of account.

Details of crypto currency or virtual currency

The Company has not traded or invested in erypto currency or virtual currency during the current or previous year,

Valuation of property, plant and equipment (including right of use assets) and intangible assets
The Company has chosen cost model for its property, plant and equipment (including right of use assets) and intangible assets.

Registration of charges or satisfaction with Registrar of Companies
There are no charges or satisfaction which are yet to be registered with Registrar of Companies beyond the statutory period.
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Equity Settled share option plan

The amounts recognized in Balance Sheet:

Particulars

Provision for stock appreciation right (Refer table below)

Total

The amounts recognized in Statement of Profit & loss

Particulars

Provision for stock option plans
Total

Stock Appreciation Rights

As at As at
March 31,2025 March 31,2024
30.83 14.22
30.83 14.22
Year ended Year ended
March g1, 2025 March g1, 2024
16.62 2,71
16.62 2.71

Aditya Birla Fashions and Retail Limited (Holding Company) has implemented SAR- Stock appreciation Rights a share option plan for the
members of senior management including of the Company, The SARs compensation cost is amortised on a straight-line basis over the total vesting
year . Options are forfeited if the employee leaves the Company before the options vest. The granting of Stock Appreciation Rights (“SARs") has
been made by the Holding Company to the eligible employees of the Company, the Nomination and Remuneration Committee approved plan as on
November 03, 2021, The shares will be issued post payment of consideration to Aditya Birla Fashions and Retail Limited and hence the same has

been treated as liability.
Vesting Exercise Vesting Fair As at As at
SAR Plan Details Grant Date Date i year (In | Value of | March 31,2025 | March 31,2024
Months)| Options | (No. of Shares) | (No. of Shares)
SAR's- Tranche 2 - 1st Vesting 18-Aug-21 18-Aug-22 18-Aug-25 12 80.21 3,030 3,030
SAR's- Tranche 2 - 2nd Vesting 18-Aug-21 18-Aug-23 18-Aug-26 24 101.8 3,030 3,030
SAR's- Tranche 2 - 3rd Vesting 18-Aug-21 13-Aug-25 13-Aug-28 48 130.36 1,515 3,030
SAR's- Tranche 2 - Bullet Vesting 18-Aug-21 18-Aug-24 19-Aug-27 36 268.72 2,513 2,613
Total 10,088 11,603
. Vesting Exercise Vesting [Setts £9eR £l
SAR Plan Details Grant Date Date date year (In | Value of | March 31,2025 | March 31,2024
Months) | Options | (No. of Shares) | (No. of Shares)
SAR's- Tranche 5 - 15t Vesting 05-Aug-22 | 05-Aug-29 o5-Aup-26 12 60.43 2,488 2,488
AR's- Tranche 5 - 2nd Vesting Oq-Aupg-oo po-Jul-25 | 9g-Jul-ag 36 47.61 1,944 2,488
04-Aug-22 04-Aue-25 04-Aug-28 a6 97,61 2,488 2.488
01-Aug-22 01-Aug-25 01-Aug-28 a6 260.68 1,084 1,084
8.204 9,448
. Vesting Exercise Vesting Fair As at As at
SAR Plan Details Grant Date Date date year (In | Value of | March 31,2025 | March 31,2024
Months) | Options | (No. of Shares) | (No. of Shares)
SAR's- Tranche 1 - 1st Vesting 07-Aug-24 | 07-Aug-25 12 93.45 5,173 =
SAR's- Tranche 1 - 2nd Vesting 07-Aug-24 | 07-Aug-26 24 86.35 5,173 -
SAR's- Tranche 1 - Bullet Vesting 07-Aug-24 | 07-Aug-26 24 271,34 1563 -
Total 11,900 -
. Vesting Exercise Vesting Fair As at As at
SAR Plan Details Grant Date Date i year (In | Value of | March 31,2025 | March 31,2024
Months)| Options | (No. of Shares) | (No. of Shares)
SAR's- Tranche 2 - 15t Vesting 7-Aug-2024 | 7-Aug-2025 | 7-Aug-2028 12 100.52 2,002 -
SAR's- Tranche 2 - 2nd Vesting 7-Aug-2024 | 7-Aug-2026 | 7-Aug-2029 24 135.02 2,002 =
SAR's- Tranche 2 - 3rd Vesting 7-Ang-2024 | 8-Aug-2027 | 8-Aug-1930 37 117.60 2,002 -
SAR's- Tranche 2 - Bullet Vesting 7-Aug-2024 | 8-Aug-2027 | 8-Aug-1930 37 247.43 1,563 -
Total 7.820 -
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58 Summary of other accounting policies
(I) Segmentreporting

Identification of segments

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision maker. The Company's operating
businesses is organized and managed according to the nature of products and services provided representing a strategic business that offers different products
and serves different markets. The analysis of geographical segments is based on the areas in which major uperating divisions of the Company operate

Segment accounting policies
The Company prepares its segment ifformation in conformity with the accounting policies adopted for preparing and presenting the financial statements of the
Company as a whole,

(II)  Fair value measurements and hierarchy

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between maiket participants at the
measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

(@) 1nthe principal market for the asset or liability; or
(b) In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability.

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that
market participants act in their best economic interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s ability to generate economic benefits by using the asset in its
highest and best use, or by selling it to another market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances, and for which sufficient data are available to measure the fair value,
maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as
follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1 - inputs are quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can access at the measurement date;
Level 2 - valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is directly or indirectly observable; and

Level 3 - valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is unobservable,

For assets and liabililies that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the Cumpany deternmines whether Lransfers have occurred between
levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorization (based on the lowest level of input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end
of each reporting period.

(IIT) Foreign currencies

Transactions and balances:

Transactions in foreign currency are recorded applying the exchange rate at the date of transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currency, remaining unsettled at the end of the year, are translated at the closing exchange rates prevailing on the Balance Sheet date.

Exchange differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary items are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at the date when the fair value was
determined, Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign cur rency are not retranslated. The gain or loss arising on transltation
of non-monetary items measured at fair value is treated in line with the recognition of the gain or loss on the change in fair value of the item (i.e, translation
differences on items whose fair value gain or loss is recognised in Other Comprehensive Income (OCI) or the Statement of Profit and Loss are also reclassified
in OCl or the Statement of Profit and Loss, 1espectively)

av) Borrowing casts

Borrowing ¢osts directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset that necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for
its intended use are capitalised as part of the cost of the respective asset. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period they occur in the Statement of
Profit and Loss

Borrowing cost includes interest and other costs incurred in connection with the arrangement of bori owings.

Borrowing cost also includes exchange differences to the extent regarded as an adjustment to the interest costs

[A%] Income Tax

Current tax

The Income tax expense or credit for the period is the tax payable on the current period’s taxable income based on the applicable income tax rate adjusted by
changes in deferred tax assets and liabilities attributable to temporary differences and to unused tax losses,

+ Income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used
to compute the amount are those that are enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date in India '

The management periodically evaluates positions taken in tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulation is subject to interpretation
and establishes provisions where appropriate




Deferred tax

Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for
financial reporting purposes at the reporting date

Deferred tax labilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences, except when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition of goodwill
or an asset or a liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor the
taxable profit or loss,

Deferred tax assets are 1ecognised for all deductible temporary differences, the carry forward of unused tax credits and any unused lax losses. Deferred tax
assets ate recognised 1o the extent that il Is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible tempaorary differences and the carry
forward of unused tax eredits and unused tax losies can be wilised, excepl when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary difference arises
from the initial recognition of an asset or a linbility in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the
accounting piofit not the taxable profit or loss

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable
profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assels are re-assessed at each reporting date and are
recognised to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable piofits will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based
on tax rates and tax laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the 1eporting date.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset, if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the
deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the same taxation authority

Tax benefits acquired as a part of business combination, but not satisfying the criteria for separate recognition at that date, are recognised subsequently if new
information is received or circumstances change. Acquired deferred tax benefits recognised within the measurement period reduce goodwill related to that
acquisition, if they result from new information obtained about facts and circumstances existing at the acquisition date

Current tax and deferred tax relating to items recognised outside the Statement of Profit and Loss are recognised outside the Statement of Profit and Loss
(either in OCI or in equity), Current and deferred tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either in OCI or directly in equity.

(VI) Impairment of non-financial assets

The carrying amonnt of assets are reviewed at each Balance Sheet date, if there is any indication of impairment based on internal/ external factors. An
impairment loss, if any, is charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss in the year in which an asset is identified as impaired. An asset’s recoverable amount is
higher of an assel's or cash-generating unit's (CGUs) fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash
flaws are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rates, that reflects current market assessment of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset for which estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted. Recoverable amount is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset
does not generate cash inflows that are laigely independent of those from other assets or groups of assets, When the carrying amount of an asset or CGU
exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount Impairment losses of continuing operations,
including impairment on inventories, are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Reversal of impairment losses recognised in the prior years is recorded when there is an indication that the impairment losses recognised for the assets no
longer exist or have decieased.

(VII) Financial insiruments
A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity instrument of another entity.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when a Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instruments.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attiibutable to the acquisition or issue of financial
assets and financial liabilities (other than financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are added to or deducted from the fair
value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial vecognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial
assets or financial liabilities at fair value through the Statement of Profit and Loss are recognised immediately in the Statement of Profit and Loss

Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within a time frame established by regulation or convention in the marketplace are
recognised on the trade date.

All recognised financial assels are subsequently measured in their entirety at either amortised cost or fair value, depending on the classification of the financial
assets.

For the purpose of subsequent measurement, financial instruments of the Company are classified in the following categories:
(a) Non-derivative financial assets

() Financial assets at amortised cost

Financial asset is measured at amortised cost using Effective Interest Rate (EIR), if both the conditions are met:

« The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets in order to collect contractual cash flows; and

- The contractual terms of the instrument give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and intevest on the principal amount
outstanding

Effective Interest Rate (EIR) method:

The EIR method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a debt instrument and of allocating interest income over the relevant period. Amortised cost is
calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The effective interest rate is the
1ate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts (including all fees and points paid or received that form an integral part of the effective interest rate,
transaction vusts and other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the debt instrument or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the gross
carrying amount on initial recognition

Income is recognised on an effective interest basis for debt instruments other than those financial assets classified as at Fair Value thiough Profit or Lag,
(FVTPL). Interest income is recognised in the statement of profit or loss, and is included in the ‘Other income’ line item




() Debt instrunients at Fair Vilue Through Other Compreliensive Income (FVTOCL)

An instrument shall be measured at FVTOCY, if both of the following conditions are met:
- The objective of the business model is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial assets; and
+ The asset’s contractual cash flows reptesent Solely Payments of Principal and Tnterest (SPPT),

For the impairment policy on financial assets measured at amortised cost, refer note below
Debt instruments included within FVTOCI category are measured initially as well as at each reporting period at fair value plus transaction cost. Fair value
movements are vecognised in other comprehensive income. However, the Company recognises intevest income, impairment losses and reversals and foreign

exchange gain/ (loss) in the Statement of Profit and Loss. On de-1ecognition of the asset, cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in OCI is reclassified
from equity to the Statement of Profit and Loss. Interest earned is recagnised under the Effective Interest Rate (EIR) model

(iii) Financial assets ot Grir valoe theough profit or loss (FVTPL)

Debt instruments that do not meet the amortised cost criteria or FVTOCI criteria (see above) are measured at FVTPL, In addition, debt instruments that meet
the amortised cost criteria or the FVTOCI criteria but are designated as at FVTPL are measured at FVTPL,

A financial asset that meets the amortised cost criteria or debt instruments that meet the FVTOCI criteria may be designated as at FVTPL upon initial
recognition if such designation eliminates or significantly 1educes a measurement or recognition inconsistency that would arise flom measuring assets o1
liabilities or recognising the gains and losses on them on different bases. The Company has not designated any debt instrument as at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value at the end of each reporting period, with any gains or losses arising on re-measurement recognised in the
Statement of Profit and Loss. The net gain or loss recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss incarporates any dividend or interest earned on the financial
asset and is included in the 'Other income’ line item, Dividend on financial assets at FVTPL is recognised when the Company's right to receive the dividends is
established, it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the dividend will flow to the entity, the dividend does not represent a recovery of part of
cost of the investment and the amount of dividend can be measured reliably.

Impairment of financinl assets:

The Company applies simplified approach of expected credit loss model for recognising impairment loss on financial assets measured at amortised cost trade
receivables and other contractual rights to receive cash or other financial asset.

The Company measures the loss allowance for a financial instrument at an amount equal to the lifetime expected credit losses if the credit risk on that financial
instrument has increased significantly since initial recognition. Tf the credit risk on a financial instrument has not increased significantly since initial
recognition, the Company measures the loss allowance for that financial instrument at an amount equal to 12-month expected credit losses, 12-month expected
credit losses are portion of the lifetime expected credit losses and represent the lifetime cash shortfalls that will result if default aceurs within 12 months after
the reporting date and thus, are not cash shortfalls that are predicted over the next 12 months.

If the Company measured loss allowance for a financial instrument at lifetime expected credit loss model in the previous period, but determines at the end of a
reporting period that the eredit risk has not increased significantly since initial recognition due to improvement in credit quality as compared to the previous
period, the Company again measures the loss allowance based on 12-month expected credit losses.

When making the assessment of whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, the Company uses the change in the 1isk of
a default oceurring over the expected life of the financial instrument instead of the change in the amount of expected credit losses. To make that assessment,
the Company compares the risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument as at the reporting date with the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument as at the date of initial recognition and considers reasonable and supportable information, that is available without undue cost or effort, that is
indicative of significant increases in credit risk since initial recognition.

For trade receivables or any contractual right to receive cash or another financial asset that results from transactions that are within the scope of Ind AS 115,
the Company always measures the loss allowance at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit losses.

(b) Non derivative financial liabilities

(i) Classification as dehl or equity

Debt and equity instruments issued by the Company are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity in accordance with the substance of the contractual
arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument,

(1) Equity instruments:

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by
the Company are recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs,

Repurchase of the Company's own equity instruments is recognised and deducted directly in equity. No gain or loss is recognised in the Statement of Profit and
Loss on the puichase, sale, issue or cancellation of the Company's own equity instruments.

(2) Comyj dfi ial instr ts:

The component parts of compound financial instiuments (convertible notes) issued by the Company ale classified separately as financial liabilities and equity
in accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument, A conversion option thal
will be settled by the exchange of a fixed amount of cash or another financial asset for a fixed number of the Company's own equity instiuments is an equity
instrument,

At the date of issue, the fair value of the liability component is estimated using the prevailing market interest rate for similar non-convertible instruments, This
amount is recognised as a liability on an amortised cost basis using the effective interest method until extinguished upon conversion or at the instrument's
maturity date




(3)  Finineial Liability
All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and in case of loans and borrowings net of divectly attributable cost

Financial liabilities are subsequently carried at amortised cost using the effective interest method, except for contingent consideration recognised in a business
combination which is subsequently measured at fair value through profit or loss. Tnterest expense that is not capitalised as part of costs of an asset is included
in the 'Finance costs' line item.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest expense over the relevant period. The
effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments (including all fees and points paid or received that form an integral part
of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the financial liability, or (where appropriate) a
shorter period, to the gross carrying amount on initial recognition

For trade and other payables maturing within one year from the balance sheet date, the carrying amounts approximate fair value due to the short maturity of
these instruments,

(ii) Loans and borrowings

Borrowings are initially recognised at fair value, net of transaction costs incuried. Borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost. Any difference
between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption amount is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss over the period of borrowings
using the EIR method. Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities are recognised as the transaction cost of the loan to the extent it is probable that some or
all of the facility will be drawn down, the fees are deferred until the draw down occurs. To the extent that there is no evidence that is probable that some or all
of the facility will be drawn down, the fee is capitalised as a prepayment for liguidity and amortised over the period of facility to which it relates.

De-recognition of financial assets and financial liabilities

The Company de-recognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or when it transfers the financial asset and
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another party, If the Company neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership and continues to control the transferred asset, the Company recognises its retained interest in the asset and an associated liability for the
amounts it may have to pay. If the Company retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the Company continues
to recognise the financial asset and also recognises a collateralised borrowing for the proceeds received.

On de-recognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the difference between the asset's carrying amount and the sum of the consideration received and
receivable, and the cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in OCT and accumulated in equity is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Lass, if such
gain or loss would have otherwise been recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss on disposal of that financial assel.

On de-recognition of a financial asset other than in its entirety (for example: when the Company retains an option to repurchase part of a transferred asset), the
Company allocates the previous carrying amount of the financial asset between the part it continues to recognise under continuing involvement and the part it
no longer recognises on the basis of the relative fair values of those parts on the date of the transfer. The difference between the carrying amount allocated to
the part that is no longer recognised and the sum of the consideration received for the part no longer recognised and any cumulative gain or loss allocated to it
that had been recognised in other comprehensive income is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss, if such gain or loss would have otherwise been
recognised in Lhe Statement of Profit and Loss on dispasal of that finaneial asset. A rumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in other comprehensive
income is allocated between the part that continues to be recognised and the part that is no longer recognised on the basis of the relative fair values of those
parts,

The Company de-recognises financial liabilities only when the Company's obligations are discharged, cancelled or have expired, An exchange with a lender of
debt instuments with substantially different terms is accounted for as an extinguishment of the original financial lability and the recognition of a new
financial liability. Similarly, a substantial modification of the terms of an existing financial liability (whether or not attributable to the financial difficuity of the
debtor) is accounted for as an extinguishment of the original financial liability and the recognition of a new financial liability. The difference between the
carrying amount of the financial liability de-recognised and the consideration paid and payable is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the Balance Sheet where there is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised
amounts, and there is an intention to settle on a net basis or realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously, The legally enforceable right must not be
contingent on future events and must be enforceable in the noimal course of business,

(VIII) Provisions and contingent liability

Provision

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required fn settle the present abligation at the end of the reporting period, taking
into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation. When a provision is measured using the cash flows estimated to settle the present
obligation, its carrying amount is the present value of those cash flows (when the effect of the time value of money is material).

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events, it is probable that an outflow of resources
embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and the amount can be reliably estimated. The expense relating to a provision is presented
in the Statement of Profit or Loss, net of any reimbursements

When some or all of the economic benefits required to settle a provision are expected to be recovered from a third party, a receivable is recognised as an asset, if
it is virtually certain that reimbursement will be received and the amount of the receivable can be measuved reliably

Contingent liability

Contingent liability exists when there is possible obligation arising from past events, the existence of wihich will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more uncertain future events wholly within the controt of the Company, or a present obligation that arises from past events where it is
either not probable that an outflow of resources will be required or the amount cannot be reliably estimated, Contingent liabilities are appropriately disclosed
unless the possibility of an outflow of resouices embodying the economic benefits is remote
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(x) Retirement and other employee henefits
(a) Defined contribution plan

The Company makes defined contribution to the Government Employee Provident Fund, which are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss, on accrual
basis. The Company recognises contribution payable to the provident fund scheme as an expense, when an employee renders the related service. The Company
has no obligation, other than the contribution payable to the provident fund

(b) Defined benefit plan

The Company operates a defined benefit gratuity plan. The Company's gratuity plan is unfunded in nature. The Company's liabilities under The Payment of
Gratuity Act, 1972 are determined on the basis of actuarial valuation made at the end of each financial year using the projected unit credit method. Obligation
is measured at the present value of estimated future cash flows using a discounted rate that is determined by reference to market yields at the Balance Sheet
date on Government bonds, where the terms of the Government bonds are consistent with the estimated terms of the defined benefit obligation. The net
interest cost is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net balance of the defined Lenefit obligation. This cost is included in the ‘Employee benefits
expense’ in the Statement of Profit and Loss. Re-measurement gains or losses (excluding amounts included in net Interest on the net defined benefit Hability)
arising from changes in actuarial assumptions are recognised in the period in which they oceur, directly in OCL They are included in retained eainings in the
Statement of Changes in Equity and in the Balance Sheet. Re-measurements are not reclassified to the Statement of Profit and Loss in subsequent periods.

(¢) Compensated absences

The employees of the Company are entitled to compensated absences. The employees can cary forward a portion of the unutilised accumulating compensated
absences and utilise it in future periods or receive cash at retirement or termination of employment, The Company records an obligation for compensated
absences in the period in which the employee renders the services that increases this entitlement. The Company measures the expected cost of compensated

absences as the additional amount that the Company expects to pay as a result of the unused entitlement that has accumulated at the end of the reporting
period. The Company recognises accumulated compensated absences based on actuarial valuation in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

The Company presents the entire leave as a current liability in the Balance Sheet, since it does not have any unconditional right to defer its settlement for
twelve months after the reporting date.

(d) Share Appreciation rights

Liabilities for the group’s share appreciation rights are recognised as employee benefit expense over the relevant service period. The liabilities are remeasured
to fair value at each reporting date and are presented as employee benefit obligations in the balance sheet.

Xx) Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity shareholders by the weighted average number of
equity shares outstanding during the period.

Far the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity shareholders and the weighted average
number of shares outstanding during the period is adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares.

(XI) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term deposits with an original maturity of three months or less,
that are readily convertible to a known amount of cash and subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value

Previous year figures
Previous year's figures have been regrouped/ rearranged wherever necessary to conform to the current year's classification(s).
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